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MESSAGE FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR
D ear M embers,

W ith im m ense p leasure, I am  here before you again to p resent the highlights of the perform ance of your 
com pany “K aw eri Telecom  Products Limited” for the financial y ear 2 0 1 2 -1 3 .

This y ear h as been challenging on m any fronts with the econom y in India and Spain on the down trend  
and telecom  in India particularly has seen lot of upheavals. The telecom  industry in India is experiencing  
a  period of very low cap ex spends by the operators like never before hurting your Com pany's operations 
in India. Your Com pany is taking initiatives on how to ad d ress this issue.

Your Com pany continues to place th ru st on R esearch  and Development enabling it to m eet the 
requirem ents of the W ireless telecom  industry to gain further m arket sh are  for its products in the new  
technology frontiers.

Y our Com pany continues to perform  well in North Am erica with the help of the subsidiaries and the step  
down subsidiaries to drive growth in these m arkets with new er products being introduced and new  
cu stom ers being acquired.

Your com pany still continues to be in growth path  by focusing on innovation and having valued  
cu stom ers in our kitty in the m arkets outside India. W ith this, I would like to th an k  our C ustom ers, 
Suppliers, and B an k ers for their continued support and also the entire team  a t K aw eri group of 
com panies for their co n stan t and dedicated efforts to achieve the vision of being “The best in C lass  
C om pany of the world, in the RF products and Antennae field”. I would specially like to th an k  all the 
shareholders for their support in taking this com pany to greater heights and gloiy.
B est regards

C. SHIVAKUMAR REDDY
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
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ENRICHED VISION. GLOBAL APPROACH:

Sm t. R ajupeta H an u m an th a Reddy K asturi started  Kaveri 
M icrowave Com ponents (KMC) as a  Proprietary con cern  during  
O ctober 1991  for m an u factu re of D uplex Filters and subsequently  
started  m an ufacturing products like Isolators, circu lators Power 
com biners. D ecom biners, Low noise Amplifiers, A ttenuators, 
D um m y load s, Hybrid Transform ers e tc .

Incorporated on Ja n u a ry  19, 1 9 9 6 , K aw eri Telecom  Products  
Limited w as started  as a  public limited com pany un d er the nam e  
and style of M /s  Kaveri Telecom s Limited a t Bangalore, K arn atak a  
bearing registration num ber 0 8 -1 9 6 2 7  of 1 9 9 6  to acquire the 
existing proprietary con cern  “Kaveri Microwave Com ponents 
”(KMC) a s  a  going concern  dealing in the m an u factu re of 
p ro fessio n al grad e m icrow ave co m p o n en ts  for u sa g e  in 
T elecom m unications, Defense and Space industry. The Com pany  
h as received certificate of com m encem ent of business on February  
1 2 ,1 9 9 6

Subsequently, the com pany changed its nam e to K aw eri Telecom  Products Limited (KTPL) for better 
description of the prod u cts th a t the com pany m an u factu res. In 1 9 9 7 , KTPL w ent public and got listed in 
B angalore, H yderabad, M adras and A hm edabad stock exch anges. Presently, the com pany sh ares are  
traded  in Bom bay Stock E xch an ge a s  'B' group u n der Indo-next segm ent. The com pany is presently  
listed in National S tock  E xch an ge (NSE) and Bangalore Stock E xch an ge (BgSE).

REINFORCED EXPERTISE. INTERNATIONAL RECEPTION:
KTPL is into design, developm ent and m an u facturing of wireless su bsystem  Products su ch  as  an ten n as  
and RF p rod u cts for telecom , defense and space applications in India and acro ss  four continents.
KTPL ventured  into exports in 1 9 9 3 -9 4  an d  established a  sep arate  R&D Division in Bangalore to develop ' 
new p rod u cts. The com pany's In-H ouse R&D C entre h as been recognized by the M inistry of Science and  
Technology since 1 9 9 6 . KTPL's R&D C entre h a s  developed m any Radio frequency(Rf) Products like 
A ntenna Coupler u n its for 2 and 4  ch an n els. Tunable B and P ass Filters(for Defense), Lim iters, 
C ircu lators, D uplex Filters, UHF,VHF and Microwave Application A ntennas viz. Yagi and Omni­
directional (VHF and UHF) and are approved by Telecom  Engineering C entre, New Delhi. Com ponents 
like D uplex Filters, Isolators, power com biners etc. are approved by DOT (QA), and Com ponents 
Approval for C om m unication Technology (CACT-DOT). KTPL also received an  international approval 
from “Federal com m unication com m ission” (FCC), North A m erica for designing and developing In­
building solution rep eaters for 4G  Technology. K aw eri today h as 5 0  p aten ts and trad e m arks acro ss  the  
world.

KTPL continues to invest in the research  and developm ent of a rray  of prod u cts for T elecom / 
D efen ce/aerosp ace an d  In Building Solutions(IBS). KTPL h as one of the industry's leading product 
portfolios in term s of perform ance and features. The proprietary design technology further en h an ces the 
com pany's stren gth  in the industry.

Today, KTPL is also one of the leading providers of wireless netw ork coverage solutioris inside buildings 
(IBS) in India and USA.



UNMATCHED QUALITY. CREATING IMPRESSIONS:
K aw eri also provides total Turnkey solutions for coverage an d  cap acity  en h an cem en t requirem ents for 
GSM, CDMA, 2G ,3G ,4G ,BW A  carriers in India and are ready for all the future technological upgrades for 
over 10 years. Com pany's list of clients including wireless m an u factu res like A lcatel-Lucent, B h arat  
E lectron ics Ltd, E ricsson , ITI, M otorola, Nokia Siem ens Network, ZTE,Huawei,Aviat etc. and telecom , 
operators like Verizon, Telefonica,A m erica Movil,GoGo, Aircel, Airtel, Idea, MTNL, Reliance, Spice, T ata  
Tele, V odafone,Rogers,Bell and Telus etc.

GLOBAL EXPANSION. INNOVATIVE VENTURES:

Today, KTPL h a s  acquired Eight Com panies acro ss  C an ad a, USA, Spain and Mexico through its 
subsidiaries, Til-tek(in April 2 0 0 6 ) , DCI Digital C om m unications (in April 2 0 0 7 ) , Spotwave W ireless (in 
D ecem ber 2 0 0 7 ) , T rackcom  system s International (in Ju ly  2 0 0 9 ) , Telecom  division of R ym sa Telecom  
called K aw eri Telecom  E sp ana(In  November 2 0 1  l),Rym ex(In November 2 0 1 1 ) Quality Com m unications  
System s Inc an d  New England C om m unication System s Corp. (In Ju ly  2 0 1 2 ) . These acquisitions have 
positioned KTPL a s  a  leading player in wireless su bsystem  Products and IBS providers in India and  
Abroad.

KaweriTelecom 
Products Limited

sub-system produds 
manufacturing)

Kaweri 
Technologies 
Inc, Cana(te

KaweriTelecom
InfrastriKture

Limited

KaweriTelecom 
Products UK 

Limited

Til-Tek,Cana(ta Communnicario 
ns, Canada

Spotwave 
Wireless Inc

Traclcom
S^ms

Intemationaiinc

Kaweri Realty 5 
Inc

Kaweri 
Technolc^ies 
Asia Pte, Ltd., 

Sinppore



It is a  leading Telecom  & D efence,space Original Design M anufacturer listed in the Bangalore and  
National S tock exchange of India, providing w orld-class. A ntennas and RF products and solutions for 
the Telecom  , Defence and Space Industries with a  worldwide presence. Founded in 1 9 9 1 , K aw eri 
Telecom  designs, develops, tests  and m an u factu res a  diverse range of wireless su b -system  products, 
from con cep t to deploym ent.

KAW ERI TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (KTIL):

A subsidiary of K aw eri Telecom  Products Limited is into the business of Providing Inbuilding 
solutions(IBS) as a  N eutral H ost Provider(NHP). The com pany provides custom ized carrier independent 
In-Building Solutions (IBS).These solutions enh an ce wireless coverage and capacity  in non-accessible  
areas, sp aces with a  large footprint su ch  as,H ospitals,H otels, offices, m alls and high-rise buildings. 
KTIL's cu sto m  installations i.e. IBS an ten n as and backhaul links boost the mobile & WiFi coverage at  
strategic buildings like hospitals, large m alls, corporate offices, high-rise buildings, and work across  
G SM /C D M A /U M T S/W iFi/W iM A X /LT E netw orks.

TIL-TEKANTENNA:

,Itbrings m ore th an  2 5  y ears of expertise in design and m an u factu re of cost-effective, high quality B ase  
station  and CPE an ten n as in the frequencies of 6 0 0  MHz to 6 GHz for the applications in broadband, 
WiFi, WiMAX and Cellular public safety.',.

Leader in design and m an u factu rin g of high perform ance cu stom  an ten n a solutions as well as  research  
in new an ten n a technologies for both the governm ent and the industry.

DCI DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Specializes in Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) p roducts, which reduce interference problem s in the 
3 0  MHz to 6  GHz range. DCI m an u factu res VHP and UHF bandpass filters, low p ass filters, WiFi filters, 
m ultiple-W indow filters, com biners, broad band duplexers, tower top amplifiers, CDMA rep eaters and 
offers unique off the shelf products as well as cu stom  solutions.

SPOTWAVE WIRELESS:

Provides carrier-approved, indoor wii+less coverage solutions to m axim ize the coverage indoors. These 
sim ple, affordable, effective solutions are applicable to wireless carriers and enterprise cu stom ers.

TRACKCOM SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL:

Designs and m an u factu res com plete set of active and passive RF elem ents required for the radio  
su b system  of a  w ireless u ser equipm ents.

The p rod u cts include RF tran sceivers, waveguide /  coaxial filters and diplexers, flexible/sem i flexible 
waveguides, tu n eless wave guides, E - plane filters, dividers, couplers, isolators, channel com biners and  
adopters.

RYMSA TELECOM ( NOW KNOWN AS KAW ERI TELECOM ESPANA):
Designs and m an u factu res m ulti-band, m ulti-port, carrier-independent an ten n a system s for mobile 
telephony base station s. R ym sa th u s im proves wireless telecom m unication^ through the con stan t 
developm ent of high quality an ten n as with optim um  specifications. Rym sa had su ccess  fully integrated  
multiple frequency bands into a  single an ten n a with 12 con n ectors so as to go on a  single pole.

QUALITY COMMINCATIONS SYSTEMS INC. 8s NEW ENGLAND COMMICATIONS SYSTEMS CORP. ( 
WIRELESS DIVISIONS OF WPCS):

These com panies are the recen t acquisitions from K aw eri Specializes in com prehensive range of wireless 
system s solutions including In-Building for Public Safety and Cellular Applications, Network Solutions, 
Mobile D ata, A sset Tracking, Radio System s, Video solutions. W ireless In frastructure and Integrated  
B u sin ess System s.

 '..........   s ...................



TIMELINE AND MILESTONES:

Tim eline M ilestones

1 9 9 6-1997 Kaweri Incorporated on 19 Ja n  1996
Receipt of Certificate for Commencement of B u sin ess-12 .02 .1996  ,
Public issue for 3 1 ,0 0 ,0 0 0  equity shares, and subsequent listing with BgSE, Ahmedabad and 
Madras Stock Exchange,
Ministry of Science and Technology (Govt of India) recognized R & D  Center of Kaweri

1997-1998 ISO 9001 recognition from KPMG quality registrar for RF modules. Antennae system and 
MARR systems

1999-2000 Development of new technolog}’ for m anufacture of High Bit Rate Digital Subscriber Line 
Equipment.

2 0 0 2 -2 0 0 3 Change of name of the Company from Kaveri Telecom Limited to Kaweri Telecom Products 
Limited.

Megasonic Telecoms Pvt Ltd amalgamates with Kaweri Telecom Products Limited.
2 0 0 3 -2 0 0 4 Receipt of approval to the scheme of amalgamation with Megasonic Telecoms Pvt Ltd effective 

from Ju ly  01 , 2003  against purchase consideration of 47 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited for every 2 equity shares held in Megasonic Telecoms Pvt 
Limited. >

2 0 0 4 -2 0 0 5 Proposal for voluntaiy De-listing of shares of Kaweri form Hyderabad, Ahmadabad, and 
Madras Stock Exchange approved by Board of Directors.

2 0 0 5 -2 0 0 6 Kaweri Technolog}’ Inc., Canada incorporated as a subsidiary to Kaweri Telecom Products 
Limited

2 0 0 6 -2 0 0 7 Shares of Kaweri Telecom Products Limited gets delisted from Hyderabad Stock Exchange. 
Acquisition of Til-tek Antennae Inc as a 100% subsidiary of Kaweri Technology Inc, Canada 

being the 100% shareholder of the company,
Incoiporation of step down subsidiaiy by the name Kaweri Realty 5 ffic, Kaweri Technology 
Inc being the 100% shareholder of the company.

20 0 7 -2 0 0 8 Draft of Employee Stock Option Schem e-2008 and approved by the Board of Directors.
Listing of equity shares on National Stock Exchange from Jan u ary  2 8 , 2008.
Acquisition of DCI Digital Communications Inc by Kaweri Technolog}’ Inc making it 100% 
subsidiaiy.
IncoqDoration of step dow’n subsidiar}’ by the name Spotwave wireless limited, Kaweri 
Technolog}' Inc being the 100% shareholder of the company.

2008-09 Delisting of shares from ASE w’ith effect from March 27, 2008
Delisting of shares from Madras Stock exchange with effect from October 15, 2008.
Incoiporation of Kaweri Telecom Infrastructure Limited in India as a Subsidiar}’ to KTPL,

2 0 0 9 -1 0 Incoiporation of Subsidiaiy’ in UK by the name “KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS UK 
LIMITED”.
Acquisition of Trackcom System s International by Kaweri Technologies Inc making it a 
Subsidiary.
Best Small & Medium Enterprises Innovator of the year was awarded to the Company by YES 
BANK, ,

2010-11 Ranked No. 22 in Business world’s “India’s Fastest Growing Companies”

20 11-12 Acquisition of telecom division of Rymsa Telecoms, Spain and subsequently renamed as 
Kaweri Telecom Espana.
Acquisition of Rymex, Mexico
Increase of investment bv Foreign Institutional Investors to 35%  with approval from Reserve
Bank of India.

2012-13 Acquired the wireless division of WPCS International Inc, a Nasdaq listed Company.



KEY ACHIEVMENTS:

1. Largest m an u factu rer of A ntennas & RF Products in India
2. M ass m an u factu rin g  strengths in A ntennas & RF Products - 

C apacity to m an u factu re 2 , 0 0 ,0 0 0  high quality A ntennas & 2, 
0 0 ,0 0 0  R F products every Year.

3 . F irst Indian private owned com pany to have Anechoic C ham ber for 
testing the an ten n a param eters.

4 . F irst Indian Com pany to design, develop & m an u factu re Frequency  
T ranslating R ep eaters.

5. The Only Indian RF com pany to have global supply agreem ent with 
Nokia Siem ens Network

6. Com pany aw arded as  Deloitte Technology F a st 5 0  India 2 0 1 1  
w inner

7. Approval from Federal Com m unication Com m ission for design and  
developm ent of In-Building solution repeaters.

8. K aw eri Telecom  launched a  16dBi A rray A ntennae in AWS Band  
(1 7 1 0 -2 1 5 5  mhz) for the North A m erican M arket

9 . K aw eri Telecom  designs and develops satellites receivers for space  
applications

10. Only Indian Com pany exporting A ntennas 86 RF Products to North. 
A m erica, Latin A m erica and E u ro p e.

PROFILES O F THE FOUNDERS:
Mr. Reddy, aged 5 0  years h as com pleted degree in B achelor  
of Technology, B. Tech (Electronics &, Com m unications) 
from Ja w ah arla l Nehru Technological LFniversity (JNTU), 
H yderabad in the year 1 9 8 4 . He w as one of the prom oter 
directors of Kaveri Microwave Com ponents Ltd., H yderabad  
w hich started  operations in 1 9 8 8  and w as in stru m en tal in 
design, developm ent and m arketing of R F products till 
A ugust 1 9 9 1 . Mr. C SHIVAKUMAR REDDY:

T hereafter, Mr. Reddy took charge of a  new proprietary  
con cern  Kaveri Microwave Com ponents a s  its Chief 
Executive Officer from 1991  to 1 9 9 6 . After the takeover of 
Kaveri Microwave com ponents by Kaveri Telecom s Limited, 
Mr. Reddy continued as  the Chief Executive Officer of the  
m erged entity and w as later appointed a s  M anaging  
D irector of Kaveri Telecom s Limited in 2 0 0 2 .

Mrs. R H KASTURI:

Ms. K asturi aged 4 5  years, is a  B ach elor of Engineering in 
Electron ics &, C om m unication from Bangalore University. She 
started  M /s  Kaveri Microwave Com ponents as  proprietary  
con cern  in 1991  and h a s  been in-charge of adm inistration  
activities of the firm. After the takeover of Kaveri Microwave 
Com ponents by Kaveri Telecom s Limited in 1 9 9 6 , Ms. K asturi 
w as appointed as  D irector of Kaveri Telecom s Lim ited.

Ms. K asturi is in strum ental in successfully  m anaging day to 
day HR and administration and operational activities of the 
com pany.



Ms. C UMA REDDY:

Ms. Reddy is a  B ach elor in A rts, h as m ore th an  2 4  years  
experience in m anaging the business of Telecom  and other sector  
com panies. Prior to joining Kaveri in 1 9 9 6 , she w as heading the  
m arketing division of a  leather products com pany and w as 
in stru m en tal in the developm ent ofth e com pany.
Ms. Reddy h as been in -charge of com pany operations and has  
been the driving force in su ccessfu l im plem entation of various  
initiatives and strategies, w hich positioned the com pany as  a  
global player.

ABOUT K A W ER I:

K aw eri Telecom  Products Limited is a  leading telecom  w ireless su bsystem  prod u cts m an u factu rer, 
providing w orld-class, hardw are products and solutions for the Telecom , Defence & A erospace  
segm ents.

Founded in 1 9 9 1 , K aw eri Telecom  designs, develops, tests  and m an u factu res a  diverse range of 
wireless Telecom  p rod u cts, from con cep t to deploym ent. W ith over 5 0 0  R&D m an -years of experience  
and over 2 0  years of high paced growth, K aw eri Telecom  is uniquely positioned to offer an  array  of 
w orld-class p rod u cts and solutions to m eet product and su b -system  requirem ents of wireless 
Telecom  equipm ent m an u factu rers. C arriers , Defence an d  Space clients. The Com pany enjoys the 
sta tu s  of being the largest Indian tran sn ation al m an u factu rer of A ntennas & RF products with 
overseas offices, distributed R&D, and foreign acquisitions resulting in m arket acce ss  spanning four 
continents and is com m itted to m eet the expectations of its sh are holding com m unity, clients , 
b usin ess p artn ers and employees.

K aw eri spends over 6%  of its revenues on R esearch  and Design of cutting edge defence, sp ace and  
telecom  prod u cts and h as a  dedicated 3 0 ,0 0 0  Sq. ft. a re a  of R&D cen ter of excellence. Collectively all 
K aw eri subsidiaries and acquisitions worldwide and respective in-house R&D have designed and  
m an u factu red  over 1 6 0 0  well tested  and proven Telecom , Defence and Space products w hich are  
curren tly  being used  in various applications. Today K A W ER I owns 5 0  paten ts in various RF related  
products and su b -system  design & developm ent in u se  by leading telecom  carriers globally.

Spread over 1 5 0 ,0 0 0  Sq ft of cum ulative built-up a re a  over 5 acres  of prime Industrial zone in 
B angalore and with five well equipped production plants worldwide, K aw eri telecom  is fully geared  
up to m eet all Telecom  and Defence com m unication m an u facturing needs of clients acro ss  the globe. 
K aw eri production plants are self-contained with the latest assem bly line m anufacturing  
in frastru ctu re  and m ost advanced test and m easuring equipm ents and h as technological com petence  
of the highest levels to achieve technologically challenging product designs in the field of Radio 
Frequency. K aw eri facility a t Bangalore h as the cap acity  of m anufacturing Rf products and  
A ntennas w orth over Rs 1 0 0 0  crores sales revenues per annum .

CLIENTELE:
E ricsson
B h a ra t E lectronics Ltd
A lcatel-Lucent
Airtel
M otorola
Huawei
N okia-Siem ens Network
ZTE
Verizon
Rogers
Telus
GOGO
Telefonica

AT&T 
C lear Wire 
L ast Mile 
XM Radio 
Aviat Networks 
A m erica Movil 

Telefonica 
Vodafone 
Idea Cellular

Reliance Com m unications
Aircel
TTSL
ISRO
DRDO
Airports Authority of India



RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

R esearch  & Development of K aw eri w as established in the year 1 9 9 4 . O ur RSgD is reqognized by the  
departm ent of science and industrial research , M inistiy of Science Technology, G overnm ent of 
India.

O ur R & D is Strong and rob u st with well layered system s and p rocesses to m aintain  the stan d ard s  
in innovation and production th a t m eets the dem ands of our clients who have found our products  
m eeting their stan d ard s and ou r innovation p ractical and effective. O ur R8sD is equipped with latest 
technology for research  and testing to en su re th a t our products m eet international stan d ard s.

O ur D istributed R&D acro ss  the globe is a  7 0  m em ber strong team  with dedicated a re a  of 3 0 ,0 0 0  
sq.ft. of R&D C enter of Excellence. O ur Com pany's R & D  capabilities and understanding of dem ands 
of the telecom , defence and sp ace industry  have resulted in early stage developm ent work with 
various global telecom , defense and sp ace com panies with the intention of procuring long term  
m an u factu rin g co n tract and capitalizing on potential outsourcing of wireless subsystem  products. 
O ur R & D  team  periodically releases new and improvised products both in term s of design and  
costing, giving u s an  advantage over other com petitors.



Notice is hereby given th a t the Eighteenth Annual G eneral Meeting of M /s  K aw eri Telecom  Products 
Limited will be held as  per the schedule given below:

Day and Date : M onday the 30**“ Septem ber 2 0 1 3

Time

Venue

10A .M .

Plot No. 31 - 3 6 ,1 Main, II Stage, Arakere MICO Layout, 
B an n erg h atta  Road, Bangalore 5 6 0  0 7 6

O rdinary B u sin ess:

1. To receive, consider and adopt

a. The audited balance sheet as a t 3 r 'M a r c h  2 0 1 3 ;

b. The audited Profit and Loss A ccount for the year ended on th at date;

c. The auditors' report, thereon; and

d. The d irectors'rep ort.

2 . To appoint a  D irector in place ofM r. L.R. Venugopal, the Independent D irectorw ho retiresh y  
rotation and being eligible, offers hei^self for re-appointm ent.

3 . To re- appoint M /s  P. Murali and Co., C hartered  A ccou n tan ts, H yderabad as Statutory  
Auditors and to hold office from the conclusion of this m eeting, until the conclusion of the next 
Annual G eneral Meeting and to fix their rem uneration.

By Order of the Board

Avinash kumar Dubey
Place: Bangalore Com pany Secretary
D ate: 0 5 .0 9 .2 0 1 3



1. A M EM BER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS BEHALF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT B E  A M EM BER  
OF TH E COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY SHOULD B E  DEPOSITED AT THE 
REG ISTERED O FFIC E OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 4 8  HOURS B EFO R E THE  
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

2 . D ocum ents relating to any of the item s m entioned in the Notice are open for inspection a t the 
Registered Office of the Com pany on any working day during the business hours.

3 . The Register of M em bers and sh are tran sfer books will rem ain closed from 2 7 .0 9 .2 0 1 3  to 
3 0 .0 9 .2 0 1 3  both days inclusive.

4 . M em bers who have not en cash ed  their dividend w arran ts so far, for the below m entioned  
financial y ears , m ay claim  or app roach  the Com pany for the paym ent thereof as  the sam e will be 
transferred  to the Investor Edu cation  and Protection Fund of the C entral G overnm ent, p u rsu an t to 
the provisions of Section 2 0 5  C of the Com panies Act, 1 9 5 6  on the respective dates m entioned  
h ereunder. The m em bers will lose their right to claim  su ch  dividend after su ch  date from the 
C om pany.

Financial Year Due Date

2 0 0 5 - 0 6 2 9 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 3

2 0 0 6 - 0 7 2 9 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 4

2 0 0 7 - 0 8 3 0 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 5

2 0 0 8 - 0 9 3 0 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 6

2 0 0 9 - 1 0 3 0 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 7

2 0 1 0 - 1 1 3 0 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 8

2 0 1 1 - 1 2 3 0 - 0 9 - 2 0 1 9

2 0 1 2 - 1 3 3 0 - 0 9 - 2 0 2 0

5. M em bers are  requested to notify any change in their ad d ress, tran sfer of sh ares, and  
request for d em at of sh ares to our R egistrar and Share T ransfer Agents.

6 . The trading in the Com pany's equity sh ares on the Stock E xch an ges is perm itted only in 
dem aterialized form for all classes of investors. In view of num erous advantages offered by the 
depository system , m em bers are requested to avail of the facility of dem aterialization of the 
Com pany's equity sh ares held by them .

7. M em bers are  requested to bring duly filled in A ttendance Slip for attending the meeting. 
The C orporate M em bers are  requested to a tta ch  the Certified True E x tra c t of the B oard Resolution  
duly authorizing their representative to attend this Annual G eneral Meeting along with the 
atten d an ce slip.



8. A nnual Report is also available on the website of the Com pany at w w w. ka ve ri te I eco m s. co m in the 
Investor section.

9 . For the secu rity  and safety of the M em bers, no article /b aggage will be allowed a t the venue of
the m eeting.

10. GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The M inistry of C orporate Affairs h as taken a  'C reen Initiative in Corporate C overnance' by 
issuing circu lars (vide circu lar nos. 1 7 /2 0 1 1  and 1 8 /2 0 1 1  dated 2 1 s t  April, 2 0 1 1  and 2 9 th  
April, 2 0 1 1  respectively), and allowing paperless com pliances by Com panies through  
electronic m ode. R ecent am endm ent to the Listing Agreem ent w ith-the Stock E xch an ges  
perm its com panies to send soft copies of the Annual Report to all those shareholders who 
have registered their e-m ail ID's for the said purpose. Therefore, the Com pany is sending the 
A nnual report through e-m ail to those M em bers who have registered e-m ail ID's. To further 
support this initiative M em bers, whose e-m ail ID's have not been registered so far, are  
requested to register their e-m ail ID's with their respective Depository P articipants, in 
resp ect of holdings in dem at form and with the Com pany's RTA, in resp ect of sh ares held in 
physical form.

By Order of the Board

Date 5 9  2 0 1 3  Avinash Kum ar Dubey
Place: B angalore Com pany Secretary



To  

T he M em bers,

The Board  of D irectors tak e pleasu re in presenting  th e ir Report along with the Audited A ccounts of the 
Com pany for the y ear ended 3D * M arch, 2 0 1 3 ,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED MARCH 

2 0 1 3

(RUPEES IN LAKHS)

FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED MARCH 

2 0 1 2

(RUPEES IN LAKHS)

Net S a les  & O ther Incom es 2 3 9 2 6 .9 2 4 7 3 0 1 .3 1

O perating Profit (30 ,95) 8 8 5 4 ,4

In terest 2 3 6 0 .3 5 1 4 7 7 .9 9

Profit before D epreciation (2 3 9 1 .3 1 ) 7 3 7 6 .4 1

D epreciation 1 2 1 4 .6 8 9 1 8 .5

E xcep tional Item s (64 ,39) 2 6 .6 6

PBT & Exceptional item s (3 5 4 1 ,5 9 ) 6 4 3 1 .2 5

Provision for Tax 1 6 0 ,9 5 1 4 1 9 ,1 2

Deferred Tax 6 0 8 ,5 9 168 ,11

PAT (4 3 1 1 ,1 2 ) 4 8 4 4 ,0 2



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

The Y ear h as been a  challenging one for the com pany as  the cellular operators have drastically reduced  
their cap ex spends and this h as severely affected your com pany's operations resulting in d rastic  
reduction of sffies revenues com pared to theprevious year.

During the y ear the Com pany's sales were Rs. 2 5 5 6 9 .6 5  L acs as  again st Rs. 4 7 3 0 1 .3 1  lacs in the 
corresponding period of last year. The Com pany m ade a  loss of Rs. 4 1 8 9 .7 4  Lacs as  again st a  Profit of 
Rs 4 8 0 8 .2 7  lacs in the corresponding period of last year

DIVIDEND:

To m aintain  liquidity, your D irectors have not recom m ended any dividend for the reporting period.

SUBSIDIARIES:

The company has following subsidiaries:

D irect subsidiaries:

M /s  K aw eriT elecom  In frastru ctu re Limited, India
M /s  Eaicom  India Private Limited, India
M / s K aw eri Technologies In c ., C an ad a
M /  s K aw eri Telecom  Products UK Limited, UK
M /s  K aw eriT echnologies Asia PTE. Limited, Singapore
M /s  K aw eriT elecom  E sp an a , Spain
M /s  K aw eri Technologies Am ericas Inc., USA*

Step down subsidiaries: (i.e., subsidiaries of M /s  K aw eriT echnologies Inc.,)

M /s  Til-Tek A ntennae Inc,
M /s  Spotwave W ireless Ltd,
M /  s D Cl Digital C om m unications In c.,
M /s  K aw eri Realty 5 Inc.,
M /  s T rackcom  System s In c.

M /s  Rym ex, Mexico is a  step down subsidiary with m ajority stak e held by M /s  K aw eri Telecom  E sp an a, 
M adrid, Spain.

*M /s  K aw eri Technologies A m ericas Inc w as incorporated during the first q u arter of 2 0 1 2 -1 3  w hich h as  
acquired the w ireless division of W PCS International Inc, USA on 2 5 . 0 7 . 2 0 1 2  and now functioning as  
two subsidiaries of K aw eri Technologies Am ericas Inc as below;

1) Q uality C om m unications System s In c, Lakewood, New Je rs e y , USA
2) New England C om m unications System s C orp ., H artford, C onnecticut, USA

P u rsu an t to M inistry of C orporate Affair's C ircular No. 2 /2 0 1 1  dated 0 8 .0 2 .2 0 1 1 ,  since the com pany is 
presenting consolidated financial statem en t of Holding and Subsidiary com panies, the individual 
financial statem en ts of the subsidiaries are not presented separately.

The consolidated financial statem en t h as been prepared in s trict com pliance with applicable Accounting  
S tan d ard s and, w here applicable. Listing Agreem ent as  prescribed by the Security and E xch an ge Board  
of India. The com pany do undertake th at an n u al report th at an n u al acco u n ts  of the subsidiary  
com panies and the related detailed inform ation shall be m ade available to shareholders of the holding 
a n d . subsidiary com panies seeking su ch  inform ation a t any point of time. Annual acco u n ts  of the 
subsidiary com panies are  also kept for inspection by any shareholders in the head office (i.e., Registered  
Office) of the com pany an d  of the subsidiary com p an ies.



FIXED DEPOSITS:

Your Com pany h as not accepted  any Fixed Deposits during the year within the m eaning of Section 58A  of 
the C om panies Act, 1 9 5 6  and the Rules m ade there under.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

P u rsu an t to the provisions of Section 2 17(2AA) of the Com panies Act, 1 9 5 6 , the directors hereby confirm  
th at:

In preparation of the an n u al acco u n ts , the applicable A ccounting Stan d ard s had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to m aterial departures.

The D irectors had selected su ch  accounting policies and applied them  consistently and m ade  
Ju d g m en ts and estim ates th a t are reasonable and prudent so as  to give a  tru e and fair view of the 
state  of affairs of the Com pany a t the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Com pany  
for th at period.

The D irectors had taken  proper and sufficient care  for the m aintenance of adequate accounting  
record s in acco rd an ce  with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the asse ts  of the Com pany and  
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

The D irectors had prepared the an n u al acco u n ts  on a  going con cern  basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Certificate of Com pliance of C orporate G overnance in term s of Clause 4 9  of the Listing Agreem ent is 
attach ed  and form s p art of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As required un d er the provisions of Section 217(2A ) of the Com panies Act, 1 9 5 6  read with the 
C om panies (Particulars of Em ployees) Rules, 1 9 7 5 , the n am es and other p articu lars of employees are set 
ou t as  Annexure to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

At K aw eri, the m ost im portant a sse t is its em ployees. Your com pany h as created  a  favorable work 
cu ltu re th at en cou rages am bition and innovation. Your com pany h as set up a  scalable recruitm ent and  
h u m an  resou rce  m anagem ent p rocess to a ttra c t and retain  talent.

DISCLOSURES:

D isclosures in term s of Com panies (Disclosure of Particu lars in report of the Board of 
D irectors) R ules, 1 9 8 8  in resp ect of C onservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange  
Earnings & Outgo are a ttach ed  and form s p art of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT:

B rief Profile of Mr. L.R. Venugopal, who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointm ent:.

Mr. L.R. Venugopal is a  C hartered A ccou n tan t by profession. He h as now over 2 7  y ears of experience in



the Industry and is also a  p artn er in a  reputed Audit Firm . K .V.N arsim han & Com pany. Mr. 
L.R.Venugopal does holds directorship in one other com pany-i.e. M /s  K aw eri Telecom  In frastructure  
Limited. Mr. L.R.V enugopal does not hold any equity sh ares ofth e com pany as  on 3 ! ' M arch, 2 0 1 3

AUDITORS:

M /s. P. MURALI & Co., C hartered  A ccou n tan ts, retiring auditors of the Com pany being eligible offer 
them selves for appointm ent as auditors of the Com pany. M /s . P. Murali & Co., C hartered A ccountants  
have furnished a  certificate of their eligibility u / s  2 24 (1B ) ofth e Com panies Act, 1 9 5 6 .

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Your Com pany believes in addressing the needs of the underprivileged and is com m itted to serving them . 
Your Com pany aim s to fulfill its social responsibilities by being actively involved in a  variety of public 
service projects serving underprivileged groups. Your Com pany h as also rhade donations to religious 
institutions.

SEPARATION OF OWNERSHIP FROM MANAGEMENT:

The C hairm an being executive. Two (2) out of Four(4) directors on the B oard  of your com pany are non­
executive and independent as  per the requirem ents of Listing Agreem ent.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS:

None ofth e  D irectors were disqualified in term s of Section 274 (1 ) of the Com panies Act 1 9 5 6 , during the 
y ear u n der review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The D irectors w ish to place on record their appreciation and acknowledge with gratitude the support and  
co-operation extended by the cu sto m ers, vendors, ban k ers, investors, shareholders and the m edia. We 
look forward to you r continued support. Your D irectors also th an k  em ployees a t all levels for their 
contribution, and recognize and deeply value the dedication, co-operation and support w hich paved the  
w ay for our growth and su ccess.

For and on behalf of the Board

C.SHIVAKUMAR REDDY
Place: B angalore C hairm an and M anaging D irector
D ate : 0 5 .0 9 .2 0 1 3



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS REPORT 

Annexure - 1

S.No Name Designation Qualification Age Et^erience
(Years)

Date of 
Commencement of 
Employment

Remuneration
received
2012-13(in
rupees)

Previous
employment

1 Mr. C.
Shivakumar
Reddy

Chairman-
managing
director

B.Tech . 50 ,24 19.01.1996 15,25,440/-

2 Mrs.
R.H.Kasturi

Director-
Operations BE 45 21 19.01.1996 15,25,440/-

—

Annexure II

D isclosures of p articu lars pertaining to conservation of energy, R esearch  and developm ent expenditure  
and Foreign E xch an g e earnings and ou t go as  required un d er Com panies (D isclosure of P articu lars in 
the report of B oard  of D irectors) Rules, 1 9 8 8 .

A. Conservation o f Energy

The operations of the Com pany are not energy intensive. However, adequate m easu res have 
heen taken  to conserve and reduce the energy consum ption.

B. Technology Absorption

Efforts m ade in Technology absorption Form  -  B Enclosed

C. P articu lars of Foreign E xch an ge Earn in gs and Outgo

CIF Value of Im ports 
Expenditure in Foreign C urrency
T echnical Know -how / R esearch  & Development Expenses  
Professional and C onsultation Fees 
M aintenance C harges  
Foreign E xch an ge Earn ed

Rs. 9 ,2 0 ,5 0 ,8 9 0  
Rs. 3 ,3 8 ,7 2 6  
Nil 
Nil
Rs. 1 0 ,0 7 ,1 4 1  
Rs. 9 ,3 6 ,8 6 ,1 3 4

F O R M  B

Specific a reas  in w hich R esearch  and Development w as carried  ou t by Your Com pany

The Com pany h as In-house R esearch  and Development Centre w hich h as been recognized by 
the M inistry of Science & Technology, G overnm ent of India since 1 9 9 4 . It carries out R&D in 
specific a reas , design and developm ent of various RF prod u cts and an ten n as for Telecom, 
Defense and Space applications. Com pany invests in continuous up-gradation of R&D 
facilities to keep them  cuttin g  edge and state  of the art. O ur R & D is always focused on providing



innovative benefits to our cu stom ers and other stakeholders by working both proactively (self 
driven research ) and reactively (custom er driven research)

R & D  also carried  out continuous im provem ents on various existing products achieving better 
productivity by design im provem ents and working with altern ate input m aterials to reduce the 
co st w ithout com prom ising on the quality of the products.

Products developed for Defense and Space:

1. D ual Module S ta g e -1 Amplifier (Freq: 300-350M H z).
2 . LowNoise Amplifier Ku B an d  (Freq: 12-18G H z).
3. Power Amplifier Ku B an d  (Freq: 1 4 -1 5GHz).
4 . Power Amplifier KU B and (Freq: 1 6 -1 7GHz).
5 . B an d  P ass Filter (Freq: 145MHz).
6. B an d  P ass Filter (Freq: 4 1  OMHz).
7. B an d  P ass Filter (Freq: 460M H z).
8. B an d  P ass Filter (Freq: 510M Hz).
9 . B an d  P ass Filter (Freq: 560M Hz).
10. B an d  P ass Filter (Freq: 61 OMHz).
11. D ual B an d  GSM A ntenna, 12dBi, (Freq: 8 8 0 -960M H z & 1 7 1 0 -1 880M H z).
12. 5 dBi Omni D irectional A ntenna (9 0 0 -9 6 0  MHz)
13. H F BITE System  with Antennas
14. V H F/ UHF BITE System  with A ntennas
15. GSM & DCS B an d  RF Unit
16. W aveguide Sw itch, Ka B an d  (Freq: 3 4 .5  to 35.5G H z)
17. GPS LNA with Filter, LI Band
18. LowNoise High Gain Amplifier, Freq: 435 -440M H z
19. B road  beam  A ntenna 2 . 4GHz
2 0 . Phased  A rray A ntenna 900M H z
2 1 . G uard A ntenna 5 Ghz

Products developed for Telecom Application:

1. 2 :2  wideband com biner
2. N:N power Com biner
3. 4 : 1 wideband com biner
4. 4  Port BTS LTE A ntenna
5. 5 / 8 / 1 0 / 1 2  dBi 145M Hz Yagi A ntenna
6. 5 / 9 / 1 2  dBi 400M H zY agi A ntenna
7. 9 /1 2 /1 6 d B i9 0 0 M H z Y a g iA n te n n a
8. 400M H z C ircular Polarized Yagi A ntenna
9 . 2 / 3  dBi Flat Indoor Omni A ntenna
10. D ual B an d  Train A ntenna
11. 1 1 / 1 6  dBi 1800M H z Panel A ntenna
12. TETRA B an d  Omni A ntenna with GPS
13. Wide B an d  IBS Panel A ntenna
14. Tri-band LPD Antenna
15. Dual Slant Omni A ntenna 3 .4GHz
16. 900M H z High Gain Omni A ntenna
17. TETRA Ban d  S ector A ntenna
18. G SM 9 0 0 / 1800/U M T S T ri-secto rA n ten n a
19. G S M 9 0 0 /1 8 0 0 /U M T S D u a lS la n tO m n iA n te n n a
2 0 . 750M H z and 2100M H z Panel Antenna



EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
a) Capital 1 4 9 1 2 8 0 .0 0 7 3 ,5 1 2 ,5 5 8
b) R ecurring 2 3 4 0 5 9 3 5 .0 0 3 7 ,5 5 0 ,4 1 2

Total 2 4 8 9 7 2 1 5 .0 0 1 1 1 ,0 6 2 ,9 7 0
Total R & D  expenditure a s  a 
percentage of Sa les and Services

0 .9 2 % 3 .3 2 %

Your com pany’s R esearch  and Developm ent Team  continu es to  develop new products, Innovate 
new processes for the existing  ones and improve production facilities and processes. In future also, 
th ru st will continu e to be on Quality as always, to identify ways to  optimize co sts  and develop new 
products with focus on cu stom er needs.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 05.09.2013

C. SHIVAKUMAR REDDY 
Chairman and Managing Director



Annexure-lII

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 4 9  OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To
The M embers
K aw eriT elecom  Produets Limited

We have exam ined the com pliance of conditions of corporate governance by KAW ERI TELECOM 
PRODUCTS LIMITED, for the year ended on 3 T' M arch , 2 0 1 3 ,  as  stipulated in Clause 4 9  of the Listing 
Agreem ent.

The com pliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of th e  m anagem ent. Our 
exam ination w as limited to a  review of the procedures and im plem entation thereof, adopted by the 
Com pany for en suring the com pliance of the conditions of Corporate C overnance. It is neither an  audit 
nor an  expression of opinion on the financial statem en ts of the Com pany.

In ou r opinion an d  to th e  best of our inform ation and according to the explanations given to u s and the 
rep resen tation s m ade by the D irectors and the m anagem ent, we certify th at the Com pany h as complied  
with the conditions of C orporate C overnance as stipulated in the above m entioned Listing Agreem ent.

We sta te  th at su ch  com pliance is neither an  a ssu ran ce  as to the future viability of the Com pany nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with w hich the m anagem ent h as con ducted  the affairs of the Com pany.

For P. Murali & C6.,
C hartered  A ccou n tan ts
Firm 's R egistration Num ber: 0 0 7 2 5 7 S

P. Murali Mohana Rao
(Partner)

M em bership Num ber: 0 2 3 4 1 2

P la c e : H yderabad  
D ate : 3 0 - 0 5 -2 0 1 3



COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Com pany's philosophy on corporate governance envisages the attain m en t of corporate excellence by 
providing en hanced  shareholders value and cu stom er satisfaction. The com pany believes th at 
governance p rocess should en su re  econom ic prosperity and long term  value creation for the com pany  
and its shareholders by following well laid out principles of tran sp aren cy , accountability and  
responsibility, investor protection, com pliance with statu tory  laws and regulations. The Com pany also 
upholds the rights of its investors and oth er stakeholders to inform ation on the perform ance of the 
Com pany.

I. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Composition of Board:

The B oard  of D irectors of the Com pany h as an  optim um  com bination of executive and non-executive  
directors. The C hairm an and M anaging D irector along with one whole-tim e D irector is m anaging  
the day-to-day operations of the Com pany.

The C hairm an of the B oard is an  Executive D irector. There are Two executive directors and Two 
non-executive directors.

Fo r the Financial Y ear ended 3 T ‘ M arch 2 0 1 3  there were 8 board m eetings

B oard  Meetings held, the d ates of w hich are 20'" April 2 0 1 2 ,  30'" May 2 0 1 2 ,  14 ‘" A ugust 2 0 1 2 ,  5'" 
S e p te m b e r2 0 1 2 , 15'" O ctober 2 0 1 2 ,  1 4 ‘"N ovem ber 2 0 1 2  November 2 0 1 2 ,  F eb ru ary  14'" 2 0 1 3 .

The com position of the B oard  of D irectors, the atten d an ce of each  D irector in each  B oard Meeting and
the last ACM and also m em bership on oth er com pany's Board or Com m ittee of B oard  is as  under:

Name of the Director Category Presence in last 
AGM

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended

Directorship in other Companies

Public Private
Committee
Chairman

Committee
Member

1. C Shivakumar Reddy Chairman & MD Yes' 8 2 3 Nil Nil

2. R H Kasturi
Director
Operations Yes 8 3 2 Nil Nil

3. L R Venugopal
Independent
Director Yes 8 2

0 Nil Nil

4, B S Shankarnarayan
Independent
Director

Yes 8 ■ 3 1
Nil Nil

B. There were no pecuniary relations or transactions between the non-executive Directors and the 
Company during the financial year 2012-13



II. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The B oard of D irectors h as con stitu ted  the following com m ittees with adequate delegation of powers 
to d ischarge day to day affairs of the com pany as well as  to m eet the exigencies of the business of the 
com pany.

The C om m ittees con stitu ted  by the B oard as on date are:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The B oard h as set up an  Audit Com m ittee as  per the provisions of p art II of clau se 4 9  of the 
ListingA greem ent and Section 292A  of the Com panies Act, 1 9 5 6 .

M em bers of the com m ittee are as follows:

Mr. L RVenugopal 
Mr. B S Shankarnarayan  
Mr. C Shivakumar Reddy

Chairman of the Comm ittee
Member
Member

The S ecretary  of the Com pany also a c ts  as  S ecretary  to the Com m ittee. The quorum  for m eeting  
of Audit Com m ittee is two independent m em bers present.

T erm s of reference:

O versee the Com pany's financial reporting to en sure th at the statem en ts are  correct, 
sufficient and credible.
R ecom m ending to the B oard, appointm ent, re-appointm ent and rem oval of internal auditors 
and fixing their fees.
Reviewing with the m anagem ent and auditors the adequacy of internal control sy stem s. 
Review of M anagem ent discussion  and analysis of financial condition and resu lts of 
operations.
Review of significant related p arty  tran sactio n s subm itted by m anagem ent.
Reviewing the Internal Audit function.
Investigating into activities within its term s of reference including seeking inform ation from  
em ployees, taking outside legal opinion w herever deem ed necessary .
Reviewing financial and risk m anagem ent policies.
E n su rin g  legal and oth er sta tu to ry  com p lian ces.
E n su rin g  com pliance with the accou n tin g stan d ard s.

The Audit Com m ittee of the B oard  had m et 4  tim es during the period u n d er review and the m eetings 
were held on 3 0 *  May 2 0 1 2 ,  1 4 *  A ugust 2 0 1 2 ,  14*  November 2 0 1 2 ,  Feb ru ary  1 4 *  2 0 1 3 .The details of 
atten d an ce of m em bers of the Audit Com m ittee are  as follows:

N a m e  o f  t h e  M e m b e r S t a t u s N o. o f  M e e t in g s  a t te n d e d
M r. L R V e n u g o p a l C h a i r m a n 4
M r. B  S  S h a n k a r n a r a y a n M e m b e r 4
M r. C  S h i v a k u m a r  R e d d y M e m b e r 4



2 . REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

M em bers of the com m ittee are  as  follows;

Mr. L R Venugopal C hairm an of the Com m ittee

Mr. B S S h an k arn arayan  M ember

Details of the rem uneration  paid to the Executive D irectors during the year 2 0 1 2 - 1 3  and the 
num ber of sh ares held by each  director:

Details of the rem uneration paid to the Executive D irectors during the year 2 0 1 2 -1 3  and the  
number of shares held by each director:

SI.
No

Name D esignation R em u n eration  
received  
(in rupees)

No o f S h ares  
held

1. Mr . C S h iv a k u m a r R eddy C h a irm a n  cu m
M an agin g
D irecto r Rs. 15,25,440/- 1736199

2 . M rs. R H K astu ri D irecto r-
O p eratio n s

Rs. 15,25,440/-
1671977

Term s of reference: To fix the rem uneration  payable to M anagerial Personnel from time to time.

The Com m ittee h as m et on 3 0 *  May 2 0 1 2 ,  14*  A ugust 2 0 1 2 ,  14*N ovem ber 2 0 1 2 ,  F e b r u a r y  
1 4*  2 0 1 3 .  during the year.

2 .SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

M em bers of the com m ittee are  as  follows: '

Mr. LR V enugopal 
Mr. B  S S h an k arn arayan  
Mr. C Shivakum ar Reddy

Term s of reference:

C hairm an of the Com m ittee
M ember
Member

3.

Allotment, tran sfer, tran sm ission  and issue of sh are  certificates including duplicate, split, 
sub-divide or consolidated certificates and to deal with all related m a tte rs .

To look into and red ress sh areh o ld ers/ investors grievances relating to tran sfer of sh ares, 
non-receipt of b alance sh eets, dividend w arran ts and su ch  other m atters th at m ay be 
considered n ecessary  in relation to shareholders and investors of the Com pany.

The Com m ittee h as m et on 3 0 *  May 2 0 1 2 ,  14*  A ugust 2 0 1 2 ,  14*  November 2 0 1 2 ,  February  
1 4 *  2 0 1 3  during the year.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE:

M em bers of the Com m ittee are as follows:

Mr. LR V enugopal 
Mr. B  S S h an k arn arayan  
Mr. C Shivakum ar Reddy

C hairm an of the Com m ittee
M ember
Member



T erm s o f R eference:

To adm inister ESO S /  ESO P of the Com pany according to the ESO S Schem e as  approved by the 
shareholders

The com m ittee did not m eet for the financial year 2 0 1 2 - 1 3 .

D epository System :

The S h ares of the Com pany ca n  be dem aterialized through either of the two Depositories in India - 
ISIN C ode-IN E 6 4 1  CO 1 0 1 9

The Com pany h as signed agreem ents with both the Depositories in India nam ely M /s  National 
Securities Depository Ltd. and M /s  C entral Depository Services (India) Ltd.

As on 3 1 / 0 3 / 2 0 1 3 ,  around 9 9 .6 9 %  ofth e sh ares ofth e Com pany were dem aterialized.

Mode of Shareholding No. of shares % of total equity shares
Physical Mode 7 2 8 2 7 0.31
Electronic Mode 2 0 0 5 1 4 3 3 9 9 .6 9

5 . SELECTION COMMITTEE:
M em bers of the com m ittee are as follows:

Mr. L.R ..V enugopal C hairm an
Mr. B .S . S h an k arn aray an  Member
Mr. C Shivkum ar Reddy Member

Term s of R eference:
To consider and recom m end the Board of D irectors of the Com pany to appoint a n d /o r  re 
appoint a  person on the B oard of the com pany.

The com m ittee did not m eet for the financial year 2 0 1 2 - 1 3 .

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:
The last three Annual G eneral M eetings of the Com pany were held as  under:

Y ear Venue D ate & Tim e

2 0 1 0 P lo t No. 9 , I M ain , II S tag e , A rak e re  
MICO L ay o u t, B a n n e r g h a t ta  R oad ,

B a n g a lo re  5 6 0  0 7 6

3 0 -0 9 -2 0 1 0  8s 10 .00  AM

2 0 1 1 3 1 -3 6 , D" M ain , 2 “'* S ta g e , A rak e re  
MICO L ay o u t, B a n n e r g h a t ta  R oad ,

B a n g a lo re  5 6 0  076 .

3 0 -0 9 -2 0 1 1  8s 10 .00  AM

2 0 1 2 3 1 -3 6 , 1®" M ain , 2 “<* S ta g e , A rak e re  
MICO L ay o u t, B a n n e r g h a t ta  R oad ,

B a n g a lo re  5 6 0  076 .

2 9 -0 9 -2 0 1 2  a n d  10 .0 0  AM



AGM Whether any 
special resolutions 
passed

Whether any 
special resolution 
passed last year 
through postal 
ballot

Whether any special 
resolution is proposed 
to be conducted 
through postal ballot

Procedure for 
Postal Ballot

2 0 1 2 Yes yes yes Duly Followed
2011 No no No NA
2 0 1 0 No No No NA

DISCLOSURES:

The Com pany h as com plied with the requirem ents of listing ag reem en t/ regulations /  guidelines /  rules  
ofth e Stoek E xch an ge /  SEBI /  o th er statu tory  authorities.

There h as not been any non-com pliance, penalties or strictu res im posed by the Stock Exch an ge, SEBI or 
any other S tatu tory  A uthority, on any m atter relating to Capital M arkets during the last 3 years.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly /  half-yearly /  an n u al /  un-audited  /  audited financial resu lts  are  sen t to the Stock  
E xch an ges im m ediately after they are approved by the B oard  of D irectors.

The R esults are published in the widely- circulated  B u sin ess S tandard  a  leading English edition. The 
Com pany does not send Half Yearly reports to the shareholders.

All official news release and financial results are com m unicated by the com pany through its corporate  
website www. kaveritelecom s. com

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION;

ACM
D ate & tim e '
Venue

Financial year  
Book Closure  
Dividend Paym ent date:

:Annual C eneral Meeting 
:3 0 *  Septem ber, 2 0 1 3
.-Plot N o. 3 1 - 3 6 ,  r ‘ F l o o r ,  T '  M a i n ,  2""
MICO Layout, B an n erg h atta  Road, Bangalore 5 6 0  0 7 6  

: r 'A p ril, 2 0 1 2  to 3 r 'M a rc h , 2 0 1 3 ,
:2 7 ”‘ Septem ber, 2 0 1 3  to 3 0 *  Septem ber, 2 0 1 3  (both days inclusive)
N o t  A p p l i c a b l e  a s  n o  d i v i d e n d  i s  p r o p o s e d  
directors.

S t a g e ,  A r a k e r e

b y

LISTING AND TRADING ON STOCK EXCHANGES:

S No. N am e & A d d ress o f  th e  S to c k  E x ch a n g e S to ck  Code
1. N a tio n a l S to c k  E x c h a n g e  o f In d ia  Ltd. 

E x c h a n g e  P la za , B a n d r a  K u rla  C o m p lex , 
B a n d r a  (E), M u m b a i-  4 0 0  0 5 1

K A W E R IT E L

2. B a n g a lo re  S to c k  E x c h a n g e  Ltd.
S to c k  E x c h a n g e  T o w ers , No. 5 1 , 1'''* C ro ss , 
J  C R o ad , B a n g a lo re  5 5 0  0 2 7

KAVERITELE

3. B o m b a y  S to c k  E x c h a n g e  Ltd.
25**  ̂ F loo r, P J  T o w ers , D a la i S tre e t  
M u m b a i 4 0 0  0 0  1

5 9 0 0 4 1  
(G ro u p  B)
B S E  In d o n e x t



The listing fee for the year h as been paid to all the Stock E xch an g es w here the Com pany's sh ares are  
listed.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

The Shareholders Com m ittee of the B oard  of D irectors of the Com pany are authorized to approve, allot, 
tran sfer, tran sm ission  of sh ares, consolidation, split of sh are  certificates, issue of duplicate share  
ce rtifica te s  in lieu  of m is p la c e d /lo s t  sh a re  ce rtifica te s , ren ew al of sh a re  ce rtifica te s , 
d em aterialization/re-m aterialization  of sh ares.

The Shareholders and Investors G rievances Com m ittee m eets as  often as  required (depending upon the 
sh are tran sfers received) to consider and approve all sh are  related m atters.

Transfers in Physical form are registered by our R egistrar and Share Transfer Agents M /s  Integrated  
E n terp rises (India) Ltd (Erstwhile M /s  Alpha System s Private Ltd.) within 21  days of receipt of 
docu m en ts com plete in all re sp e cts . Invalid Share Transfers are  returned  within 15 days of receipt.



SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 30™ JUNE 2 0 1 3 :

(I) (a) S ta tem en t show ing Sharehold ing  P a tte rn  

N am e o f  th e  C om pany : K a w e r i T e leco m  P ro d u cts  L im ited

S crip  C ode, N am e o f  th e  scr ip , c la s s  o f  s e c u r ity  : KAW ERITEL

A s o n  D ate : 3 0 -J u n -2 0 1 3

Partly paid-up sh ares
No. of partly 
paid-up shares

As a  % of total no. 
of partly paid-up 
S h ares

As a  % of total no. of sh ares 
of the coinpany

Held b\’ prom oter/prom oter group 0 0 0

Held by public 0 0 0 ,

T otal 0 0 0

O utstan d in g  convertible secu rities
No. of
ou tstand ing
secu rities

As a  % of total no. oi 
outstand ing  
convertible secu rities

As a  % of total no. of sl iares 
of
tlie  com pany, assu m in g  full 
conversion of the 
convertible secu rities

Held by prom oter/prom oter group 0 0 0

Held by p u blic 0 0 0

T otal 0 0 0

W arrants No. of w arrants
As a  % of total no. of 
w arrants

As a % of total no. of sh ares 
of the com pany, assu m ing  
full conversion of W arrants

Held by prom oter/prom oter group 0 0 0

Held by p u blic 0 0 0

T ota l 0 0 0

Total paid-u p  cap ital o f the com pany, 
assu m in g  full conversion of w arrants 
and convertible secu rities

2 0 1 2 4 2 6 0 1 0 0 .0 0



(9(0/ statement showing Shareholding Pattern as on 3<y>̂  june 2013

Sr. no.
Category of 
shareholder

Number
of

sharehol
ders

Total 
number of 

shares

Number of 
shares held 
in

Total shareholding 
as a percentage of 

total number of 
shares

Shares Pledged or 
otherwise 

encumbered

demateriali 
zed form As a As a

As a 
percenta

(I)
(“ )

(III)
(IV)

percenta 
ge of

percenta 
ge of

Number of 
shares

ge 
(IX) =

(V) (A+B)i
(VI)

(A+B+C)
(VII)

(VIII) (VIII) / 
(IV )*  
100

(A)
Promoter and
Promoter Groups

(1) Indian

(a)

Individuals/
Hindu
Undivided

oO
515
827
6

515
827
6

2
5,

5

2

5.
6

226
700
0

4
3.
9

Family 3 3 5

Central
Government 0. 0.
/State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Government 0 0

(s)

Bodies
Corporate

0 0 0
0,
0
0

0,
0
0

0 0

Financial 0, 0.
Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
/Banks 0 0

Any Other 
(Total)

0 0 0
0,
0
0

0.
0
0

0 0

Sub-Total (A)(1) 3 5158276 5158276 25,63 25.63 2267000 43.95

(2) Foreign



(2) Foreign

(a)

Individuals (Non- 
Resident
Individuals/ Foreign 
Individuals)

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

(b) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

(d)
Qualified Foreign 
Investor

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

(e) Any Other (Total) 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

Sub-Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

Total
Shareholding of 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

3 5158276 5158276 25.63 25.63
226
700
0

4 
3.
9
5

(B)
Public
shareholding^

(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds/UTI 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

(b)
Financial
Institutions/Banks

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A,

(c)
Central
Government / State 
Government(s)

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

(d)
Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 . 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

(e)
Insurance
Companies

2 1883071'
•

1883071 9.36 9.36 N.A. N.A,

Foreign
Institutional
Investors

6 3060691 3060591 15.21 15.21 N.A. N.A.



(g)
Foreign Venture 
Capital Investors

1 987500 987500 4.91 4.91 N.A. N.A,

(h)
Qualified Foreign 
Investor

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

(i) Any Other (Total) 0 0 , 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

Sub-Total (B)(1) 9 5931252 5931262 29.47 29.47 N.A. N.A.

(2) Non-institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate 200 4151341 4151340 20.63 20.63 N.A. N.A.

(b)

Individuals - i. 
Individual 
Shareholders 
Holding Nominal 
Share Capital Up 
To >Rs. 1 Lakh.

5411 1874297 1801471 9.31 9.31 N.A. N.A.

Individuals - ii. 
Individual ■ 
Shareholders 
Holding Nominal 
Share Capital In 
Excess Of Rs. 1 
Lakh

44 2630551 2630551 13.07 13.07 N.A. N.A.

(c)
Qualified Foreign 
Investor

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

(d) Any Other (Total) 177 378533 378533 1.88 1.88 N.A. N.A.

(d l) Clearing Member 95 172932 172932 0.86 0.86 N.A. N.A.

(d2) NRI 82 205601 205601 1.02 1.02 N.A. N.A.



Sub-Total (B)(2) 5832 9034722 8951895 44,89 44.89

/

N.A. N.A.

Total Public 
Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

5841 14965984 14893157 74.37 74.37 N.A.' N.A,

TOTAL (A)+(B) 5844 20124260 20051433 100.00 100.00 2267000 11.27

(C)

Shares held by 
Custodians and 
against which 
Depository Receipts 
have been issued.

0 o' 0 N.A. 0,00 N.A. N.A.

C l
Promoter and 
Promoter Group

0 0 0 N.A. 0,00 N.A. N.A.

C2 Public 0 0 0 N.A, 0.00 N.A. N.A,

GRAND TOTAL 
(A)+(B)+(C)

5844 20124260 20051433 N.A. 100.00 2267000 11,27

NAME AND DESIGNATION OF THE COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

Mr. Avinash Kumar Dubey : Company Secretary
Telephone No ; 080-41215999/60/61
Fax : 080-41215966
E-mail : companysecretaiy@kaveritelecoms.com

complianceofficeii@kaveritelecoms .com
REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

M/s  Integrated Enterprised (India) Ltd 
No 12, Ramanuja Plaza, Ground Floor,
5th Cross, Malleswaram,
Bangalore - 560 003
Ph; 080-23446386
Fax:080-23461470
Email: bglmalles@iepindia.com

MANUFACTURING FACILITY

1.Kaweri Telecom Products Ltd.
Plot No. 104, Suragajakkanahalli,
Kasaba Hobli, near Jigani, Anekal Road 
Bangalore 560 106

2.P O Box 550 500, Van Buren Street,
Kempville, ON KOGl JO Canada.

3.7730, Trans CanadienneRTE,
Saint Larent, Quebec, Canada H4T1A5

4. Kaweri T elecom Espania S. LU
C/Brezo, 60 Arganda Del rey, Madrid 28500 Spain
5.Prolong, RecursosHidraulicos, 1 E 
Colonia la Loma, Tlalnepantla,
Edo de Mexico, MX -  54060 Mexico

mailto:companysecretaiy@kaveritelecoms.com
mailto:bglmalles@iepindia.com


1. C Shivakumar Reddy, Managing Director of KaweriTelecom  Products Limited, to the best of 
my knowledge and belief, certify that;

1.1 have reviewed the balance sheet and profit and loss account (standalone and consolidated), 
and all its schedules and notes on accounts, as well as the cash flow statements and the 
directors' report;

2. Based on my knowledge and information, these statements do not contain any untrue 
statement o f a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
made, in light o f the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the statements made;

3. Based on my knowledge and information, the financial statements, and other financial 
information included in this report, present in all material respects, a true and fair view of, the • 
company's affairs, the financial condition, results o f operations and cash flows of the company 
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report, and are in compliance with the existing 
accounting standards and / or applicable laws and regulations;

4. To the best o f my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during 
the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation to the company's code of conduct;

5. 1 am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls, procedures and 
internal controls over financial reporting for the company, and we have:

a) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over, 
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness o f the company's disclosure, controls and procedures; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the company's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the company's most recent fiscal year that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the company's internal control over financial reporting

6. We have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the 
company’s auditors and the audit committee of the company's Board of Directors (and persons 
performing the equivalent functions)

a) All deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, which could adversely affect 
the company's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data, and have 
identified for the company's auditors, any material weaknesses in internal controls over 
financial reporting including any corrective actions with regard to deficiencies;

b) Significant changes in internal controls during the year covered by this report;

c) All significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have 
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

d) Instances o f significant fraud of which we are aware, that involves management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the company's internal controls system;



7. In the event of any materially significant misstatements or omissions, we will return to the 
company that part o f any bonus or incentive or equity-based compensation, which was inflated 
on account o f such errors, as decided by the audit committee;

8. I affirm that we have not denied any personnel, access to the audit committee of the 
company (in respect of matters involving alleged misconduct) and we have provided protection 
to 'whistle blowers'^ from unfair termination and other unfair or prejudicial employment 
practices; and

9. I further declare that all board members and senior managerial personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct for the current year.

C SHIVAKUMAR REDDY
Managing Director

Place: Bangalore .
Date: 05.09.2013



i <
i__

P R O F IL E :

Kaweri Telecom Products Limited is a leading telecom wireless subsystem products manufacturer, 
providing world-class, hardware products and solutions for the Telecom, Defence & Aerospace 
segments.
Founded in 1991, KaweriTelecom designs, develops, tests and manufactures a diverse range of wireless 
Telecom products, from concept to deployment. With over 500 R&D man-years of experience and over 20 
years of high paced growth, Kaweri Telecom is uniquely positioned to offer an array of world-class 
products and solutions to meet product and sub-system requirements of Telecom manufacturers. 
Carriers ,' Defence and Space clients. The Company enjoys the status of being the largest Indian 
transnational rtlanufacturer of Antennas & RF products with overseas offices, distributed R&D, and 
foreign acquisitions resulting in rnarket access spanning four continents and is committed to meet the 
expectations of its share holding community, clients , business partners and employees.

DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPANSIONS;

TELECOM APPLICATION:

The growth of Cellular Industry is rapid with the present subscriber base of approximately 900 million. 
Company's RF products and Antennas are the requirements for the cellular industry to have their 
network roll out to increase the subscriber base and revenues by maximizing the existing capacity 
utilization of the operators.

To enable seamless connectivity to the targeted subscribers, TRAI has projected need of additional
330,000 cell sites. This would provide strong thrust to the wireless telecom sub-system product 
manufacturing companies like Kaweri.

The advent of 4C should spur the requirement of Kaweri products more in India and abroad. Your 
Company's Infrastructure and products are already 4C ready. Having a positive forecast of the 
regulations to be introduced in the telecom industry, your company forecasts enormous opportunity in 
4C with readily available infrastructure and products.

Your Company has been pursuing various opportunities in defense and space segments and it has 
worked on the prototypes of these products. Your Company has designed, developed and delivered some 
of these products to defense and space establishments.

Some of the prototypes have been approved by the defense and space industry and these are expected to 
generate huge revenues in the coming years. Your Company has received a very positive response from 
the Defense and Space segments and has been entrusted with the design developments of various RF 
products and Antennas for Defense and Space applications.

Your company is planning to foray into the international markets for defence & space and actively 
looking for opportunities of both organic and inorganic expansion in this segment.

IN BUILDING SOLUTION:

Your Company's subsidiaiy “Kaweri Telecom Infrastructure Limited” (KTIL) is providing coverage 
solutions to the wireless network carriers for a positive customer experience. KTIL is the collaborator 
with the mobile operators in the IBS sphere by enhancing the quality and coverage of the signal. Selling 
service quality has become an increasingly important step to prevent attrition of the installed customer 
base. KTIL acts as a Neutral Host Provider to multiple operators. Neutral Host Provider is an entity that 
designs, deploys and maintains systems on a common platform to benefit upto 8 no.s operators 
simultaneously via a single distribution backbone. It saves opex and capex for the operators.



Your company's unique solutions takes care of 2G, 3G, 4G, Mobile television, WiFi, BwA and CDMA and 
all the future Technology upgrades for another 10 years. Currently, KTIL has deployed its services in 125 
buildings in India and the projected demand will increase this to 3000 buildings in next 5 years.

Your company's new acquisitions Quality communications Systems Inc and New England 
Communications systems Corp. will further open up new markets in the field of In building solutions in 
US markets and also an opportunity for Kaweri to bring US technolog}’ to India in the fields of Public 
Safety and Cellular Applications, Network Solutions, Mobile Data, Ass'et Tracking, Radio Systems, Video 
solutions, Wireless Infrastructure and Integrated Business Systems.

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE: 

ANTENNAS & RF PRODUCTS:

Your Company dyring the year has sold reasonable quantity of RF Products & Antennas for GSM, CDMA, 
2G, 3G and LTE Carriers across, the globe.

The Antennas supplied were Yagi Antenna, Omni Antenna, Patch Panel Antenna, Multi-port antennas 
and Base Station Antenna. Base Station antennas are the first critical component of wirelesg 
infrastructure. They capture wireless signals from the users' handsets, delivers the radio frequency (RF) 
signal from the base station radio back to the handset and sends signals to operators base stations

The RF Products supplied during theyear were TMA, TMB, filters, combiners, splitters, couplers etc. RF 
Products & Antennas are having reasonable margins. Your company has started supplying RF 
subsystems components for mission critical applications of defence and aerospace segments.

IN-BUILDING SOLUTIONS

Your Company during the year has been able to establish itself as a major player in in-building solutions 
with GSM, CDMA, 2G and 3G Carriers like Vodafone, Airtel, Idea, Reliance & Tata Tele Services. Your 
Company sees growing opportunities going forward in In-building solutions with reasonable margins.

Your Company has formed a new subsidiary to meet this growing demand for In-building solutions. This 
subsidiary caters to Build, Operate, & Lease model projects which are a welcome relief to the operators as 
they give them a good value addition to their markets in addition to savings in Capex and Opex. This 
subsidiaiy is ready with solutions for 4G, mobile television, WiFi and BWA. The added subsidiaries in the 
US will further enhance the potential and opportunities for Kaweri in inbuilding solutions area..

OUTLOOK:

The products your company manufactures are all in high growth segments. The outlook for your 
company's products in wireless Telecom world-wide is very encouraging with the growing network roll 
out action plans of various operators to meet the demands of the subscribers. Telecommunication is the 
backbone of a flourishing economy.Your Company's entry into defense and space segments will allow it 
to tap the huge potential over a longer period. Your Company sees In-building solutions as huge growth 
opportunities for the next 3-4 years as IBS Infrastructure is mandatory for large building in many 
countries and will be soon in India.

OPPURTUNITIES AND THREATS:

Your Company has designed and developed various RF Products and Antennas for 3G, 4G & other 
Wireless Technologies. Some of them are approved and some of them are in the process of approval. 
Your Company sees great opportunities for these products. Your Company is also tapping the 
opportunities for its products in defense and space applications. Also, your company is pursuing the 
opportunities for its products in the Canadian,Latin American European & US Markets.



CAPACITY EXPANSION:

Your company has shifted its manufacturing facility to Jigani, about 25 km away from Bangalore under 
one roof. This new facility, comprising of 3 floors built on the company's own land, is approximately
1,50,000 square foot in area- the largest facility in India for RF Products. We started operations in this 
facility from the end of February 2009. We plan to dedicate one of the floors for contract manufacturing 
and are under discussions with some firms for the same.

We are also planning for tie-ups with partners for manufacturing in India and will also manufacture 
items for our overseas subsidiaries. We have also started a dedicated EOU in this facility.

Our infrastructure:

R&D INFRASTRUCTURE:

The infrastructure in terms of equipments and tools available with your R&D is as follows;

1. Network Analyzers upto 20GHz 9. Anechoic chamber for antenna testing
2. Spectrum Anffiyzers upto 26.6GHz 10.Satimo Star Lab for Base Station antenna testing
3. Signal Generators 11. Environmental Chamber
4. Oscilloscopes 12. Vibration test table
5. PIM Analyzer 900 13. Bump and shock table
6. PIM Analyzer 1800 14. Machine Shop
7. RF Communication test set 15. Wideband amplifiers ,
8. PIM Analizer 1900 16.Painting shop

SOFTWARE TOOLS IN R&D:
1. Advanced design software (ADS) for 2D circuit and EM Simulation
2. CST Microwave studio for 3D EM simulation, Time domain
3. WIPL-D 3D EM simulation frequency domain
4. Auto CAD Inventor-Mechanical 3D design tool
5. Solidworks-Mechanical 2D design tool
6. AutoCAD-Mechanical 2D design tool
7. EDWIN 2000 -  PCB design tool

INFRASTRUCTURE AT THE MANUFACTURING PLANT AT JIGNAI:

1. Backup power of 180KVA
2. Sewage treatment plant
3. Microwave antenna reflector hydraulic press
4. Cable cutting and stripping machine
5. Netv.ork analyzers
6. Antenna Tester
7. ROHS Soldering stations
8. Semi automatic assembly lines
9. Machine shop
10. Painting shop
11. Passive Intermodulation testing facility (PIM)
12. Near Field measuring test Set up
13. Environment test facility.

AWARDS:
Your company was awarded as the best provider of Innovative Managed services by Economic times in 
2012. This would not have been possible without your support and encouragement.



RISKS AND CONCERNS:

Our business faces risks. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks 
that we do not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial may also impair our business 
operations. If any of the events or circumstances described in the following risks actually occurs, our 
business, results of operations or tinancial conditions could suffer and the trading price of our shares 
could decline.

We rely upon a few customers for the majority of our revenues and the loss of any one of these customers 
or rescheduling of orders from any of these customers would have material adverse effect on our 
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our success is tied to the growth of the wireless services communications market and our future revenue 
growth is dependent on the expected increase in the size of the market.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

KTPL has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and 
protected against any loss and all the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly.
The internal control system is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for 
preparing final statements and maintaining accountability of assets. The system is also supplemented 
by reviews undertaken by the management and the Audit Committee of the findings and 
recommendations of the internal audit.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT:

Human Resources are the center of focus at KTPL. They are the driving force behind the accelerated 
growth of the Company. KTPL provides constant training and development to ensure both personnel 
and technical enhancement. Severql new initiatives in terms of new HR policies, benefits to employees, 
new recruitments have taken Kaweri into a higher growth path. The employer and employee relationship 
has been cordial and the directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the contribution of all the 
employees towards the growth of the company.



To the Members of K A W E R I TELECOM PRODUCTS LIMITED  

Report on the Financial Statements:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kaweri Telecom Products Limited "the Company", 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow 
Statement for theyear then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and otherexplanatory 
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statementsthat give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance andcash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting 
Standardsreferred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ("theAct"). This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenanceof internal control relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the flnancialstatements that give a true and fair view and are free from materialmisstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility:
1

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements basedon our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Standards onAuditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
ThoseStandards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan andperform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the flnancialstatements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about theamounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selecteddepend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks ofmaterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevantto the Company's preparation and 
fair presentation of the. financial statements inorder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Anaudit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies usedand the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, aswell as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to theexplanations given to us, the financial 
statements give the information requiredby the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company asat March 31,2013;
(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the loss for the yearended on that date; ̂ d
(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the yearended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 ("theOrder") issued by the Central Government of 
India -in terms of sub-section (4A)of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the 
mattersspecif ied in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.



2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been keptby the Company so far as appears from 
our examination of those books,

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash FlowStatement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books ofaccount,

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and CashFlow Statement comply with the 
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection(3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as onMarch 31,2013, and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on March 31,2013, from being appointedas a director 
in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of theCompanies Act, 1956.

For P.Murali & Co.,
CharteredAccountants
Firm's Registration Number: 007257S

P. Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner
Membership Number; 023412

Place; Hyderabad 
Date ;30'-05-2013



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS'REPORT
I. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and

situation of Fixed Assets.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals

and no material discrepancies between the book records and the physical inventory have been noticed on 

such verification.

(c) The Company has not disposed off substantial part of the Fixed Assets during the year.

II. (a)The Inventory has been physically verified during the year by the Management and in our opinion, the

frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of the physical verification of inventory followed by the Management are

reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c)The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and as explained to us, no material discrepancies 

were noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to book records.

III. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us the company has made ah advance of 

Rs.8,53,50,050/-to the parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the 

Companies Act, 1956and the year-end balance of loans granted to such parties is Rs. 53,50,050/ -

(b) As per the information given to us, rate of interest & other terms and conditions on which loans have

been granted to parties listed in the register maintained under Section 301 are not prejudicial to the 

interests of theCompany.

(c) In respect of loans granted, repayment of principal amount is as stipulated and payment of interest is 

regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount of loans granted to Companies, Firms and other parties listed in the register

U/S 301 ofthe Companies Act, 1956.

(e) The Company has taken unsecured loans from Parties covered in the register maintained U/ s.301 of the

Companies Act, 1956 amounting to Rs. 17.63 Crores.

(f) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which loans have been taken from parties listed in the 

register maintained under section 301 is not prejudicial to the interest of company.

(g) The payment of principal & interest are in accordance with the terms and conditions of such loans.

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are generally adequate

internal control systems commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business with 

regard to purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for sale of goods and services. There is no continuing 

failure by the company to correct any major weaknesses in internal control.

V. (a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us , the transactions made in

pursuance of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been 

entered in the register required to be maintained U/ s.301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of contracts , 

or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and 

exceeding the value of rupees five lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at the prices 

which are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at the relevant time except that 

reasonableness could not be ascertained where comparable quotations are not available having regard to



the specialized nature of some of the transactions of the Company.

VI. The Compariy has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the applicability of the clause of 

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of section 58A, 58AA or any other relevant 

provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under does not arise

VII. In our opinion, the company is having internal audit system, commensurate with its size and nature of its

business.

VIII. We have broadly verified the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

order made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1) (d) of the 

Companies act,1956 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been 

made and maintained

IX. (a)The Company is generally regular in depositing statutory dues including PF, ESI, Income Tax, Cess, and any

other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities except in few cases where there was a delay in 

remitting the statutory dues and at the end of last financial year there were no amounts outstanding which 

were due for more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, 

Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and Cess which have fallen due on before 31 March 2013 and not 

been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of 
Statute

Nature of Dues Amount ( 
Rs. In 
Lakhs)

Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Central Excise A ailment of cenvat 
credit ( Including 
penalty)

5424.26 February 2007 
to 2009

CESTAT
Bangalore

However, the authorities have grantee 
within specific period.

stay of the above, on payment of Rs. 2.15 crores

Central Excise Irregular aviliment 
of Cenvat Credit( 
Including penalty)

33.2 2010-2011 Commissioner 
of customs and 
central excise 
(Appeals) 
Bangalore

Sales Tax Rate of tax levied 44.37 2007-08 to 2009- 
10

Joint
Commissioner 
of commercial 
taxes ( Appeals) 
Bangalore

Income Tax Net Tax Payable 4078.955 01.04.2004 to 
31.03.2010

Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
Appeals - 1, 
Bangalore



X. The Company has been registered for a period of not less than 5 years, and the company has no 

accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and the company has incurred cash losses in this 

financial year and there were no cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

XI. According to information and explanations given to us, the company has defaulted in repayment 

of cash credit and term loan to bank an amount of Rs. 96.85 crores which includes outstanding 

interest.

XII. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not grapted any loans or 

advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities and hence the 

applicability of the clause regarding maintenance of adequate documents in respect of loans does not arise.

XIII. This clause is not applicable to this Company as the Company is not covered by the provisions of special

statute applicable to Chit Fund in respect of Nidhi/Mutual Benefit Fund/Societies.

XIV. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not dealing or trading in shares,

securities. Debentures and other investments and hence the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order 2003, are not applicable to the Company.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has given guarantee for loans taken

from banks by a subsidiary Company and prima facie, the terms and conditions on which such guarantee 

have been given are not prejudicial to the interests of the company.

XVI. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Term Loans obtained by the company were 

applied for the purpose for which such loans were obtained by the Company.

XVII. On the basis of our examination of the books & accounts and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, in our opinion the funds raised on short term basis have not been used for Long 

term investment.

XVIII. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential

allotment of Shares to parties and Companies covered in the Register maintained under section 301 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and hence the applicability of the clause regarding the price at which shares have 

been issued and whether the same is prejudicial to the interest of the Company does not arise.

XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any debentures and 

hence the applicability of the clause regarding the creation of security or charge in respect of debentures 

issued does not arise.

XX. According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised money by way of 

public issues during the year; hence the clause regarding the disclosure by the management on the end use 

of money raised by public issue is not applicable.

XXI. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed

or reported during the year under audit.

For P.MURALI & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN:007257S

PLACE : HYDERABAD 
DATE : 30-05-2013

P. Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

M.No. 023412



KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2013

Note No.
31.03.2013 31.03.2012

Rs. Rs.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital 2.1 20,12,42,600 20,12,42,600
(b) Reserves and Surplus 2.2 1,66,79,00,390 2,38,96,25,452
(c) M oney received against share warrants 25,50,000 -

Share application money pending allotment -  -

Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 2.3 62,45,221 55,82,533
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2.4 10,08,06,517 7,63,91,000
(c) Other Long term  liabilities -
(d) Long-term provisions 2.5 21,63,89,494 29,23,67,496

Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 2.6 1,13,26,05,990 63.37,74,896
(b) Trade payables 2.7 19,82,15,593 36,49,91,957
(c) Other current liabilities 2.8 8,41,89,759 4,61,96,274
(d) Short-term pro visions 2.9 7,64,67,963 33,32,69,773

TOTAL 3,68,66,13,527 4,34,34,41,981

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible assets 2.10 39,77,28,885 41,57,30,021
(ii) Intangible assets 2.10 7,78,65,708 8,72,44,218
(iii) Capitai work-in-progress 49,41,350 13,56,639

(b) Non-current Investments 2.11 53,82,50,215 48,85,70,160
(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) -
(d) Long-term loans and advances 2.12 43,06,93,500 1,00,14,69,800
(e) Other non-current assets 2.13 5,51,44,542 12,22,98,272

Current Assets
(a) Current Investments - -
(b) Inventories 2.14 61,56,73,817 58,38,31,284
(c) Trade receivables 2.15 49,62,83,884 99,56,34,254
(d) Cash and bank balances 2.16 39,12,067. 3,13,53,273
(e) 5hort-term  loans and advances 2.17 1,05,50,46,249 59,66,73,193
(f) Other current assets 2.18 1,10,73,310 1,08,80,867

TOTAL 3,68,66,13,527 4,33,50,41,981

The accompanying notes are an integral part o fth e  financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

C.Shivakumar Reddy 
Managing Director 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 3d.05.2013

R.H.Kasturi
Director

Sidharth C A 
Company Secretary

As per our report of even date 
For P. Murali & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No: 007257S

P.Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

Membership No: 023412



Note No. 31.03.2013
Rs.

31.03.2012

Rs.

Revenue from operations(Gross) 2.21 2,70,22,73,413 3,36,80,91,415
Less: Excise Duty 1,60,01,519 2,77,52,312
Less Sales Returns 1,30,10,52,525

1,38,52,19,369 - 3,34,03,39,103
Other Income 2.22 23,61,21,924 16,26,71,006

Total Revenue 1,62,13,41,293 3,50,30,10,109

Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed and Purchases Stock-in -Trade 2.23 1,58,17,19,027 2,45,21,75,702
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 

work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
2,24 (9,81,38,695) 11,64,48,560

Em ployee benefits expense 2.25 6,36,77,560 9,09,72,463
Finance costs 2.26 15,38,64,186 12,67,40,593
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.27 4,87,39,413 3,99,98,918
Other expenses 2.28 10,03,71,607 13,36,07,352

Total Expenses 1,85,02,33,097 2,95,99,43,588

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (22,88,91,804) 54,30,66,521
Exceptional items • 2.29 (73,19,908) 19,88,200
Profit before extraordinary items and tax
Extraordinary Items

(22,15,71,897) 54,10,78,321

Profit before Tax
Tax expense:

(22,15,71,897) 54,10,78,321

(1) Current tax - 13,40,10,000
(2) Deferred tax 2,44,15,517 (52,15,000)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations
(24,59,87,414) 41,22,83,321

Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing operations (aftertax) - -

Profit for the period 

Earnings per share:

(24,59,87,414) 41,22,83,321

(1) Basic (13.78) 23.09
(2) Diluted .................... (13-75) 23.05

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

As per our report of even date 

For P. Murali & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN No:007257S

C.Shivakumar Reddy 

Managing Director

Place: Bangalore 

Date: 30.05.2013

R.H.Kasturi
Director

Sidharth C A 

Company Secretary P.Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

Membership No: 023412



Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2013
Year Ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2013 March 31, 2012

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before Taxation and extraordinary items (22,15,71,897) 54,10,78,321
Adjustm ents for Depreciation 4,87,39,413 3,99,98,918
Loss on sale of Tangible assets 12,81,714 1,94,125
Provision for Advance given to a Foreign Subsidiary - 37,18,584
Unrealised Loss/(Gain) on foreign currency translation (4,10,59,659)
Deferred employee Cost 1,15,96,656 39,40,923
Bad debts written off - 1,30,32,783
Interest Expenditure 15,38,64,186 12,67,40,593
Interest Income (4,57,52,725) (5,14,76,943)
Income Tax relating to earlier years (73,19,908) 13,37,520
Discount (47,89,34,304) -

Liabilities/Provisions written back . (17,27,329)
Operating Profit before working capital changes (53,80,96,865) 63,57,77,835
Changes in W orking Caoital;
lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (16,67,76,365) 24,95,38,631
lncrease/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (25,68,01,810) (1,73,28,166)
Increase/I Decrease) in Long Term Provisions (7,59,78,002) 2,81,36,055
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 3,79,93,485 (39,689)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 49,93,50,370 (16,20,03,384)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories (3,18,42,533) 2,74,73,185
(lncrease)/Decrease in Short term Loans and advances (45,83,73,055) (6,10,79,711)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and advances 57,07,76,300 (82,14,53,796)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current assets (1,92,443) (91,44,988)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other non Current assets 6,71,53,730 (10,79,04,887)
Cash generated from Operations (35,27,87,189) (23,80,28,914)
Taxes paid (Net of refunds) (10,61,47,818)
Net cash generated from operations before extraordinary items (35,27,87,189) (34,41,76,732)

Net cash generated from operating activities (35,27,87,189) (34,41,76,732)

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible/Intangible Assets (1,66,82,229) (1,66,82,229)
Purchase of long term investments (4,96,80,055) (6,97,42,860)
Capital W ork in Progress (35,84,711) 6,29,26,408
M oney received on Sale of Assets 13,60,664 1,00,000
Interest received 4,57,52,725 5,14,76,943
Net Cash from Investing Acti>^es (2,28,33,606) 2,80,78,262

C Cash flow from Financing Activities
Dividends paid - (2,10,00,747)
Dividend distribution tax - (67,68,701)
Dividend relating to earlier year -
Dividend distribution tax relating to earlier year - (6,80,817)
Interest paid (15,38,64,186) (12,67,40,593)
lncrease/(Repayment) of borrowings 49,94,93,783 1,54,66,104
Proceeds from share capital increase - 6,05,52,800
Security Premium - 67,80,62,500
Share application m oney pending allotment 25,50,000.00 (12,23,81,445)
Expenses on account of share capital increase - (71,38,846)
Net cash raised in Financing activities 34,81,79,597 46,93,70,256

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,74,41,198) 15,32,71,785



Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of 
theyear
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of
Cash on Hand 
Balances with Banks*

Total
* Includes the following balances which are not available for use by the Company 

Unpaid dividend account

4,52,001
34.60.076
39.12.077

57,697
3,12,95,577
3,13,53,274

11,52,479

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

C.Shivakumar Reddy 

Managing Director

Place: Bangalore 

Date: 30-05-2013

R.H.Kasturi

Director

Sidharth C A 

Company Secretary

As per our report of even date 
For P. Murali & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN No: 007257S

P.Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

Membership No: 023412



KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS LIMITED
2. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013

The previous year figures have been regrouped /  reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current year presentation. 

2.1 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
2,50,00,000 (Previous Year 2,00,00,000} Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Issued and Subscribed and fully Paid-up
2,01,24,260 (Previous Year 14,068,980) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 
fully paid up

25,00,00,000

20.12.42.600
20.12.42.600

25,00,00,000

20.12.42.600
20.12.42.600

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share held.
Paid-up capital includes 4,935,000 shares issued as consideration as per the Scheme of amalgamation with erstwhile Megasonic Telecoms Private 
Limtied in the year 2003-04.
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
Dividend, if approved, is payable to the shareholders in proportion to their shareholding.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company. The 
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
Reconciliation of number of Shares As at As at
Equity Shares: 31st March 2013 31st March 2012

Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares

Balance as at the beginning.of the previous year 2,01,24,260 .20,12,42,600 1,40,68,980 14,06,89,800
Add: Shares issued during the year ^ _____________________________________________________60,55,280  6,05,52,800
Balance as at the end of the year ________ 2,01,24,260 20,12,42,600 2,01,24,260 20,12,42,600

Details of Shares held by shareholders, holding more than 5% of the a^regate shares in the Company.
No. of Shres Percentage No. of shares Percentage

C Shiva Kumar Reddy 
R H Kasturi 
C Uma Reddy_______

17.97,995
18,41,604
17,50,100

8.93
9.15
8.70

23,56,704
23,63,769
17,50,100

11.71
11.75
8.70

Stock Option Plan (2008)
In the financial year 2008-09, the company instituted the 2008 Plan. The shareholders and Board of Directors approved the plan in April 2008 which 
provides for the issue of 5,00,000 equity shares to the employees. The compensation committee administers the 2008 Plan. Options were issued to 
employees at an exercise price at par value of the share.
Vesting of employee stock options granted occurs in tranches as under:______________ ______________________________  _________
______  Period   ^ ___ Vesting proportion _________
At the end of one year from the date of grant 
At the end of two years from the date of grant 
At the end of three years from the date of grant

The activity in the 2008 Plan during the year ended March 31, 2013 is set out be]ow: 
Price of exercise per share

Vesting proportion
20%
30%
50%

Rs. 10/-

As of March 31,2013, the Company had 3,07,200 number of shares reserved for the issue.

3,07,200

Number of shares 
outstanding arising

out of options____
'3,07,200



Particulars
(a) Capital Reserve
Opening balance
Add: Transferred from  surplus
Balance as at the  end o fth e  vear

73,25,779

73,25,779

73,25,779

73,25,779

(b) Securities Prem ium  account
Opening balance
Add: Receipt on issue o f securities
Add; Receipt on exercise o f Employee Stock Options

Less: Utilisation towards QIP Expenses 
Balance as a t th e  end o f th e  year

(c) Employee Stock op tion  outstanding
Opening balance
Add: New Grants during the year
Less:- Transfer to  Securities premium Account
Less:-Transfer towards Lapsed options

Less:- Deferred stock compensation cost

(d) General Reserve
Opening balance
Add : Transfer from  Statem ent o f Profit and Loss 
Balance as a t the  end o f  th e  year

(e) Surplus in S tatem ent o f P ro fit and Loss
Opening balance
Less: Discount given to  Al Mehrab Trading

Discount given to  M /s.Nextgen Electronics Pvt Ltd 
Dividend relating to  earlier year on account o f 
increased capital
Dividend d istribution tax on above

Add: Reduction in Tax provision due to  Discount given
Add: Reduction o f Dividend from40% to  15% fo r the year 2011-1
Add: Dividend distribution tax on above
Add: Profit fo r the year
Am ount available fo r  appropria tion
Appropriations:
Proposed Dividend on Equity shares fo r the year 
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend of 
equity Equity Shares 
Transfer to  General Reserve 
Balance as at the  end o f the  year

TOTAL

1,18,00,36,432

1,18,00,36,432

5,82,88,050

4,93,297
5,77,94,753
4,53,33,408

9,07,44,280

1,10,22,54,272
39,62,93,026
27,27,06,974

13,15,93,401
5,03,10,650

81,61,645
(24,59,87,414)
37,73,32,554

1,18,00,36,432

1,24,61,345

9,07,44,280

50,14,63,071
67,80,62,500

76,49,707
1,18,71,75,278

71,38,846

87,59,420
5.82.88.050 

76,49,707 
11,09,713

5.82.88.050 
5,74,23,361

4,95,15,948
4,12,28,332

82,96,35,772

42,00,000

6,80,817

 41,22,83,321
1,24,54,38,276

8,04,97,040
1,30,58,632

4,12,28,332

1,18,00,36,432

8,64,689

9,07,44,280

37,73,32,554

1,66,79,00,390

1,11,06,54,272

2,38,96,25,452

2.3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS 
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Secured
Term Loan account w ith  State Bank o f India
Vehicle Loan from  Banks ■ 62,45,221

TOTAL 62,45,221
a) Term Loan Account w ith  State Bank o f India is secured by firs t charge on the entire  present and fu tu re  fixed assets o f the company and equitable 

mortgage o fth e  land and building at Suragajakkanahalli, Anekal Taluk where the factory is located and fu rthe r secured by the  securities offered in 
respect o f Cash Credit facilities as referred to  in Column No. 2.6.

Terms o f Repayment: Repayable in 38 m onthly instalments from  the date o f the Loan (February 2010) alongwith interest o f 13.15% p.a.
b) Vehicle loan from  the respective banks are secured by the respective vehicles against which the loans are granted

(i) Vehicle Loan from  HDFC Bank is repayable in 36 m onthly instalments commencing from  June 2010 w ith  an interest rate o f 8.5%
(ii) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 35 m onthly instalments commencing from  October 2011 w ith  an interest rate o f 10%
(iii) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 60 m onthly instalments commencing from  April 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 11.34%
(iv) Vehicle Loan from  Axjs Bank is repayable in 36 m onthly instalments commencing from  August 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 9.71%
(v) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 36 m onthly instalments commencing from  July 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 10.88%
(vi) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 36 m onthly instalments commencing from  July 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 10.89%
(vi) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 36 m onthly instalments commencing from  July 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 10.89%

7,35,735
48,46,798
55,82,533



2.4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Net)
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Liability attributable to  Depreciation 10,41,25,426 7,96,40,000
Less: Asset attributable to  expenses allowable when pafd 33,18,909 32,49,000

TOTAL 10,08,06,517 7,63,91,000

2.5 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Provision fo r Warranty 21,04,73,437 28,81,67,255
Gratuity obligation (Refer Note. 2.39) 59,16,057 42,00,241

21,63,89,494 29,23,67,496
TOTAL 21,63,89,494 29,23,67,496

2.6 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As a t 31.03.2012
Secured
Cash Credit account w ith  State Bank o f India 94,75,94,608 58,37,74,896
Corporate Loan 86,68,967 5,00,00,000
Loans from  Directors 17,63,42,415 -

TOTAL 1,13,26,05,990 63,37,74,896

2.7 TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Acceptances 29,22,02,509
Tradespayables 19,82,15,593 7,27,89,448

TOTAL 19,82,15,593 36,49,91,957
Refer Note: Refer to  Note No. 2.41 regarding further disclosures relating to  MSMED Act.

2.8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As a t 31.03.2012
Current maturities o f Long term  debt:
Term Loan account w ith  State Bank o f India 1,32,90,726 3,12,00,000
Vehicle Loan Payable 46,66,745 45,74,215
Unpaid dividend 3,09,40,802 11,52,479
Statutory dues (Including Provident Fund, W ithholding 2,18;40,659 79,15,454
and other taxes payable)
Others payable 55,06,736 9,40,115
Advance received from  related party 1,80,223 1,58,927
Advance received from  customers 77,63,868 2,55,084

TOTAL 8,41,89,759 4,61,96,274
There are no amounts due fo r payment to  the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 20S C o fth e  Companies Act, 19S6 as at the year
end.

2.9 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
>

Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Provision fo r Employee benefits 11,69,798 88,74,840
Provision fo r Income Tax 2,50,00,186 16,83,94,301
Provision fo r Compensated absence 43,13,281 20,94,081
(Refer Note No. 2.39)
Dues to  Key Managerial Personnel 3,80,76,361 3,78,83,676
Provision fo r Warranty 67,13,261 1,44,49,062
Other Provisions 11,95,076 80,18,141
Provision fo r proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - 8,04,97,040
Provision fo r dividend distribution tax on proposed - 1,30,58,632
Dividend on equity shares

TOTAL 7,64,67,963 33,32,69,773



2.11 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Trade Investments (Valued at cost)
Unauoted
Investment in Subsidiaries (Refer Note: 2.32 to r list o f investments) 53,82,50,215 48,85,70,160

TOTAL 53,82,50,215 48,85,70,160

2.12 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As a t 31.03.2012
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Security Deposits 
Sales Tax disputed payments 
Statutory Disputed payments 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Loans and advances to  related parties (Refer Note 2.40) 27,30,95,548 
Less; Provision fo r no longer recoverable advances 37,18,584

68,82,876
10,43,331

2,38,73,795

26,93,76,964
89,55,96,119

37,18,584

68,79,933
73,65,844
26,80,021

89,18,77,535
Interest receivable on loans given to  Related Parties

TOTAL
12,95,16,534
43,06,93,500

9,26,66,467
1,00,14,69,800

2.13 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012

Long term  trade receivables
Long term  deposits w ith banks w ith  m aturity period more than 12 months 
(Out o fth e  above deposits, Rs.5,00,00,000 is given as a collateral security 
against the Term Loan availed by a subsidiary Company and Rs. 2,00,00,000 
is given as collateral against the Facilities granted by State Bank o f India)

4,90,87,000 7,00,00,000

Margin Money Deposits
(Held as Margin money by the banks against guarantees given by the banks)

60,57,542 5,22,98,272

TOTAL 5,51,44,542 12,22,98,272

2.14 INVENTORIES
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3,2012

(a) Raw materials
Antennae/Accessories/Components 21,44,41,314 
Cables 73,27,130

22,17,68,444
27,69,26,032

1,11,38,574

28,80,12,574

(b) Work-in-progress 4,25,63,903 69,79,297

(c) Finished goods
Antennae/Accessories/Components
Cables

- ,

4,43,87,846
75,91,516

5,07,86,452

(d) Stock-in-trade
RF Products and others 35,14,41,470

35,13,41,470
23,80,00,929

23,80,00,929

(e) Packing Materials , 52,032

TOTAL 61,56,73,817 58,38,31,284



Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding fo r a period exceeding six months from  the date they 
are due fo r payment 

- from  related Parties 3,87,07,325 5,34,06,327
- from  Other customers 40,13,27,184 39,49,152

Others 2,42,88,343 92,79,62,390
Due from  Related Parties 3,19,61,032 1,03,16,385
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding fo r a period exceeding six months from  the date they 
are due fo r payment
Others
Less: Provision fo r doubtful debts -

TOTAL 49,62,83,884 99,56,34,254

2.16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Cash and Cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 25,53,414 57,697

Bank balances:
in current Account 4,52,001 3,01,43,099
in Unpaid dividend account 9,06,662 11,52,479

TOTAL 39,12,078 3,13,53,275

2.17 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particuiars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Unsecured, considered eood
Balances w ith  Customs, Central Excise,VAT etc. 43,26,471 35,24,367
Prepaid expenses 23,25,747 38,84,829
Loans and advances to  Employees 1,10,236 5,16,305
Advances paid to  Vendors fo r supply o f goods and rendering o f services 73,57,19,298 4,68,23,253
Share application money pending allotment in a subsidiary 12,20,00,000 12,20,00,000
Short Term deposit w ith  corporates 40,00,00,000
Due from  Related Parties 5,81,23,590 1,98,24,439
Deffered Expenses fo r Services 13,20,00,000
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 4,40,907

TOTAL 1,05,50,46,249 59,66,73,193

2.18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Income accrued on deposits 13,18,733 11,26,290
Income accrued on Loan to  Others 97,54,577 97,54,577

TOTAL 1,10,73,310 1,08,80,867

2.19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(to  the  exten t n o t provided for)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 80,80,428 80,80,428
Statutorv claims under aooeals/disoutes: 
(a) Income tax matters 40,78,95,506 ' 5,14,13,876
(b) Excise Matters (Refer Note (v) below) 54,24,26,022 50,35,82,590
(c) Sales Tax matter 44,37,266 53,22,513
Guarantees by Bank 79,91,851 67,98,570
Corporate Guarantee 73,41,00,865 81,49,50,191

(1) M/s. Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Ltd and M /s Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. had invoked bank guarantees totaling to  Rs. 4,41,000 and Rs.7,55,081 
respectively against which the company has filed cases against such invoking o f bank guarantees and is advised tha t the matter will be resolved 
in favour o f the company in respect o f the said amount and hence no provision is made in the books o f account.

(ii) in the M atter o f dispute w ith  M /s Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL), the Honourable High Court o f Karnataka at Bangalore have referred the 
m atter to  the arbitra tor to  be appointed by M /s BSNL, against invoking o f Bank guarantee of a sum of Rs.22,70,000.

(iii) There are claims against one o f the Company's properties located at Bangalore, which is presently owned by the Company.
(iv) Margin Money deposits w ith  the bank amounting to  Rs. 5,22,98,272 (Rs. 1,43,93,385) has been given as margin money fo r the guarantees issued 

by the bankers.
(v) Customs, Excise an Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, South Zone, Bangalore,however had stayed the aforesaid demand subject to  payment o f Rs.2 Crores 

w ithin six weeks from  07.03.2012 and Rs 15 Lakhs w ithin a period of six weeks from  31.01.2012



2.20 PROPOSED DIVIDEND
The final dividend proposed fo r the year is as follows;

On equity shares o f Re.lO each
Amount o f dividend proposed Dividend per Equity Share

in Rs. 
0.00

in Rs. 
1.50

2.21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

(a) Sale o f Products
(b) Sale o f services

TOTAL

1,37,55,79,682
95,39,687

1,38,52,19,369

3,36,29,92,468
50,98,947

3,36,80,91,415

Details o f Sales o f Products: 
Antennae/Accessories/Components 
RF Products 
EOU sales

2.22 OTHER INCOME

13,80,60,202
1,22,85,55,429

8854051
1,37,55,79,682

95,00,19,554
2,23,22,14,585

14,30,05,907
3,33,52,40,155

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
(a) Interest received from  Banks
(b) Interest received on Loan given to  subsidiaries
(c) Management Fees
(d) Bad debts recovered
(e) Liabilities w ritten  back to  the extent no longer required
(f) Provisions no longer required w ritten  back
(g) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
(h) Professional Charges
(i) Miscellaneous income
(j) Profit on sale o f Fixed Assets

TOTAL

 ̂86,55,502 
3,70,97,223

4,75,264

8.54.29.619
5.45.48.619 
4,99,15,697

23,61,21,924

1,37,16,831
3,77,60,111
1,56,85,135

17,27,329

9,37,32,395

49,205

16,26,71,006

2.23 C05T OF MATERIAL C0N5UMED AND PURCHA5ES 5T0CK IN TRADE
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 . Year ended 31st March 2012
M ateria l Consumption;
Opening 5tock o f Raw Materials 
Add : Purchases during the year 
Less: Closing 5tock

28,80,12,574
13,16,71,374
22,17,68,444 19,79,15,504 _

19,90,38,207
31,06,49,904
28,80,12,574 22,16,75,537

Packing Materials
Opening 5tock of Raw Materials 
Add : Purchases during the year 
Less; Closing 5tock

52,032
10,81,376

11,33,408

51,024
12,69,973

52,032 12,68,965

Purchases 5tock in Trade 1,38,26,70,115 2,22,92,31,200

TOTAL 1,58,17,19,027 2,45,21,75,702

2.24 CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
(lncrease)/Decrease in Stocks 
Stock at the end o f the year; 

Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 
Stock in Trade

4,25,63,903
35,13,41,470 39,39,05,373

5,07,86,452 
69,79,297 , 

23,80,00,929 29,57,66,678

Less: Stock at the beginning o f the year 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress
Less: Transfer to  Research and Development 
Stock in Trade

5,07,86,452
69,79,297

23,80,00,929 29,57,66,678

4,72,27,190
52,80,015

35,97,08,033 41,22,15,238

lncrease/(Decrease) in Stocks (A-B) TOTAL 9,81,38,695 (11,64,48,560)



Particulars year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Salaries; Wages and Bonus 4,68,04,129 4,05,32,408
Contribution to  Provident and other funds 24,49,638 23,17,161
Gratuity paid 19,01,666 8,14,046
Deferred Employee cost 1,15,96,657 39,40,923
Managerial Remuneration - 4,28,41,276
Staff welfare expenses 9,25,470 5,26,649

TOTAL 6,36,77,560 9,09,72,463
(Refer Note 2.39 on disclosure requirement as per Accounting Standard 15 on Employee benefits)

2.26 FINANCE COSTS
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Interest on Long term  borrowings 28,40,899 75,86,748
Other borrowing cost 14,45,32,821 10,78,76,432
interest on statutory dues 2,84,277 27,42,681
Charges towards letter o f credit and guarantees 61,67,168 77,38,644
Others 39,021 7,96,088

TOTAL 15,38,64,186 12,67,40,593

2.27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Particulars - Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Depreciation on tangible assets 3,38,17,263 3,01,05,714
Amortisation on Intangible assets 1,49,22,150 98,93,104

TOTAL 4,87,39,413 3,99,98,818

2.28 OTHER EXPENSES ‘
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Consumption o f stores and spare parts 4,31,398 11,36,008
Excise Duty on Increase/Decrease o f Finished Goods (67,96,455) (9,69,149)
Power and Fuel 18,80,831 18,56,442
W arranty Charges - 3,31,01,819
Job work and handling charges 29,15,302 , 1 26,99,326
Freight Inwards 53,09,586 55,33,365
Rent 7,20,000 12,60,000
Repairs and Maintenance -  Plant and Machinery 22,53,750 28,54,302
Repairs and Maintenance -  Building 62,375 1,84,455
Repairs and Maintenance -  Others 16,35,653 14,54,414
Insurance 15,64,207 14,82,422
Rates and Taxes 2,57,098 1,61,612
Travelling and Conveyance 54,84,237 . 71,20,378
Directors'S itting fees 40,000 85,000
Statutory Auditors : Audit fees 5,00,000 5,00,000

Tax Audit fees 75,000 75,000
Other Services 1,25,000 1,25,000
Cost Audit Fees 65,000
Reimbursement o f expenses - 7,65,000 23,418 7,23,418

(also re fer note no.2.51)
Professional fees 55,18,225 63,35,029
Service Charges 3,99,91,982 1,40,27,832
Bad debts w ritten  o ff - 1,30,32,783
Freight Outward Charges 25,36,298 24,83,838
Loss on Sale o f assets 12,81,714 1,94,125
Provision fo r Advance given to  a Foreign Subsidiary - 37,18,584
Research and Development Expenses 1,19,88,722 1,72,67,365
Miscellaneous expenses 1,94,74,956 1,78,63,984
Other Expenses 3056728.09

TOTAL 10,03,71,607 13,36,07,352



Income tax relating to  previous years 
Prior Period Adjustments

TOTAL
(73.19.908)
(73.19.908)

13,37,520
6,50,680

19,88,200

2.30 AMALGAMATION
Amalgamation w ith  Megasonic Telecoms Private Limited: - The Company got amalgamated w ith  erstwhile Megasonic Telecoms Private Limited in the 
year 2003-04 and as per the  scheme o f amalgamation 4,935,000 equity shares were issued as consideration.

2.31 CAPITAL RESERVES
The Capital Reserve o f Rs. 73,25,779/- represents the excess o f net fa ir value o f assets over the purchase consideration in terms o f scheme o f 
amalgamation taken place during the year 2003-04, which was duly approved by the Hon'ble High Courts o f Karnataka and Bombay.

2.32 INVESTMENTS
Pursuant to  the Scheme o f Amalgamation as referred to  in Note 2.30 above, Eaicom India Private Limited (EIPL, erstwhile 100% subsidiary company of 
Megasonic Telecoms Private Limited has become a wholly owned subsidiary o t the Company.

The Company incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name o f KAWERI TECHNOLOGIES INC at Canada during the financial year 2005-06 w ith  an initial 
investment of 292,000 CAD Dollars. Additional investment o f CAD 2,015,000/-was made during the year 2007-08 in the aforesaid subsidiary by partial 
conversion o f the loan granted to  the subsidiary.
The Company incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name o f KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS UK Limited at UK during the financial year 2009-10 w ith  no 
initial cost o f investment.
The Company has incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name o f Kaweri Telecom Espana at Spain during the current financial year 2011-12 w ith  one 
million and three thousand Euros as cost o f investment.

The Company incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name o f KAWERI TECHNOLOGIES ASIA PTE LTD at Singapore during the financial year 2012-13 w ith 
an investment o f USSl/-.
DETAILS OF INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
2,12,850(Previous Year 2,12,850) Shares o f Rs. 10/- each fu lly paid up in 
M/s.Eaicom India Pvt Ltd

2,30,700(Previous Year 2,30,700) Shares o f CAD 10/- each fu lly paid up in
14,57,18,000 14,57,18,000

M/s. Kaweri Technologies Inc 8,80,09,300 8,80,09,300
909,600(Previous Year 909,600) Shares o f Rs. 10/- each fu lly paid up in
M/s. Kaweri Telecom Infrastructure Limited 18,51,00,000 18,51,00,000

1,003,000 (Previous Year N IL) Shares o f Euro 1/- each fu lly paid up in
Kaweri Telecom Espana 6,97,42,860 6,97,42,860
900,000 (Previous Year N IL) Shares o f US$ 1/- each fully paid up in
M/s. Kaweri Technologies Asia PTE Ltd. Singapore
900,000 (Previous Year N IL) Shares o f US$ 1/- each fully paid up in 55

48,85,70,215 48,85,70,160
The fo llow ing is the list o f Subsidiary Companies and percentage shareholding as at the end o f the year:
Particulars Country o f Year ended Country o f Year ended

Incorporation 31st March 2013 Incorporation 31st March 2012
EAICOM INDIA PRIVATE LTD India 100% India 100%
KAWERI TELECOM INFRASTRUaURE LIMITED India 51% India 51%
KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS UK LIMITED England 100% England 100%
KAWERI TECHNOLOGIES INC Canada 100% Canada 100%
KAWERI TELECOM ESPANA Spain 100% Spain 100%
KAWERI TECHNOLOGIES ASIA PTE LTD Singapore 100% Singapore /
Subsidiaries o f whollv owned subsidiarv. Kaweri Technoloeies
1 Ainc.
TIL-TEKANTENNAEINC Canada 100% Canada 100%
TRACKCOM SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL INC Canada 67% Canada 67%
DCI DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS INC Canada' 100% Canada 100%
SPOTWAVE WfRELESS LTD Canada 100% Canada 100%
KAVERI REALTY 5 INC' Canada 100% Canada 100%
Subsidiarv o f whollv owned subsidiarv. Kaweri Telecom Esoana
RYMSA De MEXICO Spain 100% Spain 100%

2.33 CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Raw materials 9,20,50,890 9,09,57,593
Components and spare parts Nil NIL
Capital Goods Nil 12,78,622

TOTAL 9,20,50,890 9,22,36,215



Particulars
Technical knowhow/Research and development expenses 
Professional and consultation fees 
Travelling expenses 
Maintainance Charges

Nil
Nil

3,38,726
10,07,141

6,09,61,500 , 
1,51,140 

16,96,677 
23,52,972

TOTAL
2.35 DETAIL5 OF C0N5UMPTI0N

13,45,867 6,51,62,289

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
a) Details o f Raw M aterials Consumed
Raw Materials Consumption 1,58,17,19,027 2,45,21,75,702

TOTAL 1,58,17,19,027 2,45,21,75,702

b) Details o f value o f im ported and indigenous m aterial consur
Raw Materials

Imported
8,00,44,252

Indigenous
1,50,16,74,775

Imported 
. 7,90,91,209

Indigenous
2,37,30,84,493

TOTAL 8,00,44,252 1,50,16,74,775 7,90,91,209 2,37,30,84,493

2.36 DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Dividend paid duringthe year 
Number of Non Resident Shareholders
Number o f equity shares held by such Non Resident Shareholders 
Year to  which the Dividend relate to

-

2.37 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Revenue from exports on FOB basis
Interest
Other Income

TOTAL

66,73,214
3,70,97,223
4,99,15,697
9,36,86,134

68,57,96,774
2,08,66,358
1,56,85,135

72,23,48,267

2.38 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

(a) Basic
Profit after tax
Weighted average nuniber o f shares outstanding 
Basic EPS

Basic extra­
ordinary items

(24,59,87,414)
1,78,56,009

(13.78)

^A fte r extra­
ordinary items

(24,59,87,414) . 
1,78,56,009 

(13.78)

Basic extra­
ordinary items

41,22,83,321
1,78,56,009

23.09

A fter extra­
ordinary items

41,22,83,321
1,78,56,009

23.09

(b) Diluted
Profit after tax
Adjusted net p rofit fo r the year
Weighted average number of shares outstanding fo r diluted EPS
Diluted EPS
Face value per share

(24.59.87.414)
(24.59.87.414) 

1,78,85,450
(13.75)

10.00

(24.59.87.414)
(24.59.87.414) 

1,78,85,450
(13.75)

10.00

41.22.83.321
41.22.83.321 

1,78,85,450
23.05
JO.'OO

41.22.83.321
41.22.83.321 

1,78,85,450
23.05
10.00

2.39 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The details required under !S 15 -  Employee Benefits is as fo llow

The present value o f the obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of 
service as giving rise to  additional unit o f employees benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to  build up the final obligation.
The obligation fo r Compensated absence is recognised in the same manner as gratuity. The Company has not funded the Gratuity and Compensated 
absence liability.



Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Rs.

Gratuity
Rs.

Compensated
absence

Rs.
Gratuity,

Rs.
Compensated

absence

Obligations at Period beginning 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (Gain) /  Loss 
Benefits paid
Obligations at Period at the end of the year

42,00,241
6,34,402
3,69,975
8,97,289

(1,85,850)
59,16,057

20,94,081
26,65,119

(4,45,919)
43,13,281

33,99,868
5,84,164
2,89,856
(59,974)
(13,673)

42,00,241

24,53,961
(1,12,501)

(2,47,379)
20,94,081

Change in Plan Assets
Plan assets at period beginning at fa ir value 
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial (Gain) /  Loss

Contributions 
Benefits paid

Plan assets at period end at fa ir value

1,85,850
(1,85,850)

4,45,919
(4,45,919)

13,673
(13,673)

1,51,668
(1,51,668)

Reconciliation o f present value o f the  obligation and fa ir value o f the plan assets
Fair value o f plan assets at period end
Present value o fth e  defined benefit obligations at the e nd o fth ( 59,16,057 
Asset /  (Liability) recognised in the balance sheet 59,16,057

43.13.281
43.13.281

42.00.241
42.00.241

20.94.081
20.94.081

Assumptions
Discount rate
Estimated salary escalation rate

7.95%
10.00%

7.95%
10.00%

8.60%
10.00%

8.60%
10.00%

Cost o f the  period
Service cost 
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 
Net cost

6,34,402
3,69,975

(8,97,289)
1,07,088

26.65.119

26.65.119

5,84,164
2,89,856

(59,974)
8,14,046

(1.12.501)

(1.12.501)

2.40 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (as identified by the Company)

Description o fth e  nature o f transaction Description of 
Relationship

Related Party Year ended 
31st March 2013

Year ended 
31st March 2012

Sale of goods Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 18,61,825 20,00,778

Subsidiary
Trackcom Systems 
International Inc 8,23,183 2,16,708

Key Managerial 
Personnel Shivakumar Reddy 16,372
Subsidary Rymsa De Mexico 81,36,855

Subsidiary
KaweriTelecom
Espana 18,05,915

Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless li 30,22,536 6,735

Subsidiary

Kaweri Telecom
Infrastructure
Limited 50,97,238 NIL

Purchase of goods Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 1,67,761

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure 
Limited
Kaweri Telecom Esp, 
Rymsa De Mexico

Interest received Subsidiary
Kaweri

Technologies Inc

Subsidiary
Kaweri Telecom

Espana_________
Kaweri Telecom '

47,33,08,790
46,69,752
31,14,365

2,88,96,939

Subsidiary
Infrastructure 
Limited 
SMR Telecorrf 
Holdings

Other Related Party Private Limited

87,14,873

1,21,51,485

1,68,93,753

1,24,123



Rendering o f services

Receiving o f services

Subsidiary Rymsa De Mexico 1,42,91,219 90,62,094
Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Esp: 88,70,969 66,23,041
Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless Ir 83,29,654
Subsidiary Tiltek Antenna Inc 82,45,679 _

' New England
Communication

Subsidiary Systems 47,62,878 -

Kaweri Telecom
Infrastructure

Subsidiary Limited 4,04,30,304 1,49,24,617
Kaweri !

Subsidiaiy Technologies Inc - 33,58,748
Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 2,74,48,200

Spotwave Wireless
Subsidiary Inc. 1,37,24,100

Provision fo r Advances Subsidiary

Kaweri Telecom 
Products 
UK Limited 37,18,584

Remuneration paid
Key Managerial 

Pdhsonnel Shivakumar Reddy 15,25,440 15,09,360
Key Managerial 

Personnel R H Kasturi 15,25,440 15,09,360
Key Managerial 
Personnel L. Nicolas 29,75,844 33,72,280

Lease rentals paid Other related party Uma Reddy 1,80,000 7,20,000

Loans taken

Key Managerial 
Personnel R H Kasturi 61,82,805 73,50,000
Key Managerial 
Personnel Shivakumar Reddy 13,34,53,857 1,34,12,343

Trade Receivables

Payable at the year end

Receivable at the year end

Subsidiary
Communication
Inc 2,87,698

Subsidiary SpotwaVe Wirless lim ited 2,26,651

Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc -

Subsidiary
Trackcom Systems 
International Inc

Subsidiary Rymsa De Mexico -

Key Managerial
Personnel Shivakumar Reddy 13,27,64,800 1,74,75,138
Key Managerial 

Personnel R H Kasturi 61,82,805 1,74,75,138
Other related party Uma Reddy 1,58,40,000 13,81,566

Subsidiary
Trackcom Systems 
International Inc 1,58,927

Subsidiary
Kaweri

Technologies Inc 5,06,07,451 2,78,46,490

Subsidiary
DCI Digital 

Communication Inc 6,49,364
Subsidiary Kaweri Realty Inc 18,195 17,181
Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Esp; 20,27,27,454 21,21,18,387
Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless It 1,04,54,221

Subsidiarv

Kaweri Telecom
Infrastructure
Limited 84,40,841 61,75,98,391

Subsidiary

Kaweri Telecom 
Products 
UK Limited 37,19,685 37,18,584

Subsidiary
Eaicaom India 

Private Limited 3,43,46,795 3,42,97,085
Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 9,24,25,103 1,98,24,439
Subsidiary Trackcom System Inc 8,14,717
Subsidiarv Rymsa De Mexico 2,18,00,215



share application money pending allotment

Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Espana 1,21,51,485
Kaweri Telecom

Infrastructure
Subsidiary Limited 1,52,04,378

Kaweri
Subsidiary Technologies Inc 5,51,86,481

SMR Telecom
Other Related Party Flolding s Pvt Ltd 1,24,123

Subsidiary

Kaweri Telecom
Infrastructure
Limited 12,20,00,000 12,20,00,000

LIST OF RELATED PARTIES 
Key Managem ent Personnel

Mr.C.Shivakumar Reddy

Direct Subsidiaries Indirect Subsidiaries Other Associates/
Other re lated party

Eaicom India Private DCI Digital
SMR Telecom 
Floldings

Limited Communications Inc Private Limited

Kaweri Technologies Spotwave Wireless
inc. Ltd Ms. C.Uma Reddy

Ms. R .FI Kasturi

2.41 DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure Limited 
Kaweri Telecom 
Products UK Limited 
Kayveri Telecom 
Espana

Kaweri Technologies 
Americas Inc

Kaweri Realty 5 
Inc.
Trackcom Systems 
International tnc 
Til-Tek Antennpe 
Inc.
Rymsa De Mexico 
Quality
Communications 
Systems 
New England 
Communication 
Systems

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013
Principal amount due to  suppliers registered under the 
MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 
Interest due to  suppliers registered under the MSMED 
Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 
Principal amounts paid to  suppliers registered under 
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 
during the year
Interest paid,other than under Section 16 of MSMED 
Act, to  suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 
beyond the appointed day during the year 
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to  
suppliers registered underthe MSMED Act, beyond 
the appointed day during the year 
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered 
under MSMED Act, fo r payments already made. 
Further interest remaining due and payable for 
earlier years.

2.42 MANGERIAL REMUNERATION

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Year ended 31St March 2013

Year ended 31st March 2012
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Year ended 31st M arch 2012
Name

C.Shiva Kumar Reddy - Managing Director 

R. H Kasturi - Whole Time Director 

L. Nichofts - Whole Time director 

Other Non Executive Directors

Total

Remunaration Commission Remuneration Commission

15.00.000

15.00.000

33.72.280

63.72.280

15.00.000

15.00.000

15.00.000

15.00.000

21.00.000

51,00,000

1.45.48.717

1.45.48.717

15,00,000

3,05,97,434

As the future liability o f Gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis fo r the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to  the 
Directors is not ascertainable and therefore not included in above.



2.43 SEGMENT RESULTS
The company's predominant risks and returns are from  the segment of "Wireless suh-systems Products" represented by intenna, Duplexer, RF Products 
and RF accessories, which constitute the major revenue o f the company fo r the reporting period. Since this being a single business segment,the segment 
information as per iccounting'Standard 17, "Segment Reporting", is not disclosed.

2.44 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Salaries & Wages
Cost o f Materials and services (Included under materia) 
purchase)
Overhead
Capital Expenditure
Total

1,14,67,535

64,20,730

3,27,241
1,82,15,506

1,42,89,367

86,76,936
I,45,84,109 
7,35,12,558
II,10,62,970

The aforesaid expenses have been debited under various heads o f expenses account in the Statement o f Profit and Loss.
(Auditors have relied on the certificate o f the management regarding the apportionment o f the expenses incurred in connection w ith the Company's 
Research and Development Activity)

2.45 UNEXPIRED WARRANTY CHARGES
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Balance at the beginning o f the year 
Additions during the year 
Reversals during the year 
Balance at the end o f the year

30,26,15,317
67,13,261

9,21,42,880
21,71,86,698

26,95,14,498
4,07,09,467

76,07,648
30,26,16,317

(The management has ascertained the Warranty liability that wUI accrue in the future periods as on 31st March 2012 and has reversed such excess 
liability, if any, to  the Profit and Loss Account as at the yearend. The auditors have relied on the certificate o f the management in this regard.) •

2.46 OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The company has taken office, other facilities under cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases, which are renewable on a periodic basis.

The disclosures relating to  the leases undertaken are given under:
Particulars Year Ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Lease rent recognized in the Statement o f Profit and Loss 
Minimum lease payments outstanding in respect o f these areas 
under;
Not later than one year.
Later than one year and not later than 5 years

1,80,000

12,60,000

12,60,000
1,721
6,884

2.47 In the opinion of Board of Directors, all current assets, loans and advances. Investments have atleast the value as stated in the Balance Sheet, 
if realized in the ordinary course o f business.

2.48 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Pursuant to  Accounting Standard AS-28- Impairment o f assets issued by the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006, the Company assessed 

. its fixed assets fo r itppairment as at 31st March 2012 and concluded that there has been no significant impaired fixed asset that needs to  be 
recognized in the books o f account.

2.49 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
a. Particulars o f unhegded foreign currency exposure as at  the reporting date. _____________
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Payables US Dollars 

CAD Dollars 
Euro
Sterling Pound 
Singapore Dollars

12,48,401 US Dollars 
17,577 CAD Dollars 
21,313 Euro

NIL Sterling Pound 
NIL Singapore Dollars

20,29,351
1,100

NIL
NIL
NIL

Receivables . US Dollars 
CAD Dollars 
Euro
Sterling Pound 
Singapore Dollars

1,19,38,673 US Dollars 
18,571 CAD Dollars 

25,26,764 Euro
45,952 Sterling Pound

Singapore Dollars

1,74,28,059
10,532

32,88,696
82,333
11,105

US Dollars 
CAD Dollars 
Euro
Sterling Pound 
Singapore Dollars

recognised (S Rs
, 53,83 US Dollars 

52.55 CAD Dollars 
58.73 Euro 
81.38 Sterling Pound 
43.06 Singapore Dollars

recognised @ Rs 
50.83 
50.80 

,67.62 
80.94 
40.33



.2.51 The Provision fo r income tax has been calculated taking into consideration investments in Capital expenditure made under Research and 
deveiopment eligible fo r a weighted deduction o f 200% under section 35(2AB) o f the Income Tax Act 1961.

2.52 The Company has defaulted in repayment o f cash credit and term  loan which were availed from  Bank. The Bank has issued notice U/s. 13(2) o f Securitisation and 
Reconstruction o f Financial Assets and Enforcement o f Security Interest Act, 2002 to  recover an amount o f Rs. 96.85 crores which includes outstanding interest 
towards cash credit and term  loan availed by the Company.

2.53 During the year, the company had taken back the materials from  the customers as the payments w ere n o t being received from  them. The Company in turn made 
arrangements w ith  the vendors to  return these materials back to  the vendors from  whom they were sourced.

2.54 The Company during the  year gave volurhe discounts to  various customers and to  have fu tu re  business from  these customers.

For and on behalf o f the Board o f Directors of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

As per our report o f even date 

For P.Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 0072S7S

C.Shivakumar Reddy 
Managing Director

R.H.Kasturi
Director

Sidharth C A 
Company Secretary

P. Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

Membership No. 023412

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 30.05.2013
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1. STATEMENTON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Background

M/s Kaweri Telecom Products Limited ('company' or 'Kaweri') was incorporated in 1996 and is engaged in the 
design, development and manufacture of Radio Frequency products and antennae for telecom, defense and 
space applications in India and abroad. Kaweri enjoys the status of being the largest manufacturer of wireless 
subsystem products like. Radio frequency products and antenna and Radio Frequency products in India. Kaweri 
also provides total turnkey solutions for coverage and capacity enhancement requirements for GSM 3G and 
CDMA carriers in India.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified Accounting 
Standards by Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions o fthe  Companies Act, 
1956. The financial statements have been prepared underthe historical cost convention on an accrual basis in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year and in case of 
any such variation in the accounting policy as compared to the previous year; such variations are disclosed 
separately as a part of notes to accounts.

3. Change in Accounting Policy:

During the year ended March31, 2012, the revised schedule VI notified under the Companies Act, 1956, has 
become applicable to the Company, for preparation and presentation of fjnancials .The adaptation of revised 
schedule VI does not ipipact recognition and measurement principles followed by the Company for preparation 
of financial statements. However, it has significant impact on presentation and disclosures made in the financial 
statements. The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requirements 
applicable in the current year.

4. Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure o f contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results o fthe  operations during 
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events 
and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

5. Tangible and Intangible Fixed Assets: 

Tangible Fixed Assets:

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition (Net of Cenvat and VAT) plus subsequent improvements 
thereto including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and 
installation including finance charges which are directly attributable to the Fixed assets less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.



Capital Work in Progress comprises o fthe  cost o f fixed assets thatare not put to use as at the Balance 
Sheet date and advance paid towards acquisition o f Fixed Assets and relevant financial charges 
incurred thereon.

Intangible Fixed Assets:

Technical knowhow acquired to beused to upgrade and develop new products and used for 
enhancement of features & functionalities o f the products are capitalised under Fixed asset as 
Technical Knowhow.

Software which are not integral part o fthe  hardware are classified aslntangibles and is stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization. Software's are being amortized over the estimated useful life which 
is estimated as3 Years.

6. Depreciation:
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided using Straight-line method at.the rates prescribed under 
Schedule XIV of the companies Act, 1956 on proportionate basis.

Cost of Technical knowhow is being written o ff over a period of 10 years.

Cost of assets wherever less than Rs. 5000 is is written o ff fully in the year of purchase.

Depreciation in respect of overseas subsidiaries is provided over the estimated useful life by using the 
Witten down Value (WDV) method.

However, the said rates of depreciation, respect of overseas subsidiaries are higher than the rates 
prescribed vide Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

7. Impairment of Assets:

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount o fthe  asset. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling 
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

8. Leases:
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as arr expense in 
the  S ta tem en t o f 'P r o f i t  and Loss on a s tra ig h t- lin e  basis over the  lease te rm .

9. InventoryValuation:
Raw Materials, Stores and spares and Traded Goods are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. 
Cost is determined based on first in first out basis and are net of provisions.
Work in Progress and Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
Direct Materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
capacity. ■

. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.



10. Investments:

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Long term 
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a 
diminution other than temporary in the value o f investments.

11. Research and Development:

Expenditure on Research and Development other than capital items is charged to revenue. Cost incurred 
on any generation of intangible/tangible asset out of the Research and development activity rs 
amortized/written off overthe estimated life o f the asset.

12. Revenue Recognition:

Sales are recognized when the significant risks attached to the goods are passed on to the buyer and 
are recorded net of duties, trade discounts, and rebates.

Sales Returnsare recognized as and when ascertained and are reduced from the sales turnover ofthe 
year.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.

Export benefits are accounted on accrual basis.

13. W arranty Expenses: Estimated amount of warranty expenses evaluated on a technical basis on sale of 
Radio Products wherever it is obligated to cover under warranty,is provided in the year of sale and the 
expired portion ofthe  Warranty expenses relating to the period/year are transferred to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Unexpired portion of the Warranty expenses is carried over as a liability in the books of 
account and is written back over the number of years of the coverage of warranty on the basis of 
estimated warranty expenses for such products.

14. Exchange Fluctuation:

a. Foreign currency transactions are accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction.

b. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement o f foreign currency transaction and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the yearend 
rates are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c. In case the monetary assets and liabilities are covered by forward contract, the premium or 
discount arising at the inception of such a forward contract is amortized as expense or income 
overthe life of the contract.

15. Employee Benefits:
In respect o f Parent Company including Indian Subsidiaries



Provident Fund: Eligible employees receive benefits from a Provident Fund, which is a defined 
contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon, are paid at retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination of employment. Both the employee and the Company make 
monthly contributions to the Government administered Provident Fund. The Company has no 
obligation beyond its contribution.

Gratuity: Adefined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan") is provided to all employees. In 
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum 
amount to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, 
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. 
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method, as of the balance sheet date.

Expenses on ex-gratia payment to employees, a defined contribution plan, are accounted as and 
when accepted by the management.

Provision in respect of Leave encashment is made, based on actuarial valuation.

16. Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized until the time all substantial 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. A qualifying 
asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs not eligible for capitalization are charged to revenue.

17. Taxes:

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current Income Tax is measured based on the tax 
liability computed after consideringtax allowances and exemptions.

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, 
on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that 
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. '

Deferred Tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

18. Cash Flow Statement:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted forthe  effects of 
transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and items income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. Cash and Cash 
Equivalents include Cash on hand and balance with banks in current and deposit accounts, with necessary 
disclosure of cash and cash equivalent balances that are not available for use by the company.

19. Stock Option Plan (2008): The Company instituted the Kaweri ESOS 2008 Plan for all eligible employees in
pursuance o fthe  special resolution approved by the shareholders by Postal ballot on 23* April 2008. The 
Kaweri ESOS 2008 Plan covers all employees o fthe  company and its subsidiaries and Directors (excluding 
Promoter Directors) of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, "eligible employees"). Under the 
Scheme, the Compensation Committee of the Board ('the Committee') shall administer the Scheme and 
grant stock options to eligible directors and employees o f the Company and its Subsidiaries. The



Committee shall determine the employees eligible for receiving the options, the number of options to be 
granted, the exercise price, the vesting period and exercise period. Vesting of employee stock options 
granted occurs in tranches as under:

Period - Vesting proportion
At the end of one year from the date of grant 20%
A ttheendoftw oyearsfrom thedateofgrant ' 30%
Atthe end of three years from the date of grant 50%

The exercise price for the purpose of exercise of options will be at Rs.10/-per share i.e. at par.

The employee stock options granted shall be capable of being exercised within a period of 5 years from the 
date of vesting options or such lesser period as may be decided by the Compensation Committee from 
time to time.

Under the Scheme3,07,200 stock options out of the total of 5,00,000 stock options reserved for grant of 
options having an exercise price equal to the par value o fthe  underlying equity shares on the date o f grant 
(i.e. Rs. 10 per option) are outstanding as at thfe balance sheet date.

As the number of shares that an individual employee is entitled to receive and the price o fthe  options are 
known at the grant date, the scheme is considered as a fixed grant.

In the case of termination of employment, all non-vested options would stand cancelled. Options that 
have been vested but have not been exercised can be exercised within the time prescribed under each 
option agreement by the Committee or if no time lim it is prescribed, within 30 days of the date of 

' employmenttermination,fairmgwhichtheywouldstandcancelled.
The Company follows intrinsic method of accounting based on which the compensation cost is recognized 
in the 5tatement of Profit and Loss.
During the current year, the company under the Kaweri 2008 Plan has granted 76,800options to eligible 
employees.

20 . Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

21. Investments in Subsidiary Companies:

a. Pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation, Eaicom India Private Limited (EIPL), erstwhile 100% 
subsidiary company of MegasonicTelecoms private Limited has become a wholly owned subsidiary of 
the company.

b. The Company incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name of KAWERI TECHNOLOGIES INC at 
Canada during the financial year 2005-06 with an initial investment o f 292,000 CAD Dollars .Additional 
investment of CAD 2,015,000 /-  was made during the year 2007-08 in the aforesaid subsidiary by 
partial conversion of the loan granted to the subsidiary.



c. The Company incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name of KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS UK 
Limited at UK during the financial year 2009-10 with no initial cost of investment.

d. The company has incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the name of KAWERI TELECOM ESPANA 
during the financial year 2011-12 with 1,003,000 Euros as cost of investment.

e. ■ The company has incorporated a 100% subsidiary in the naitie of KAWERI TELECOM ASIA PTE LTD 
during the financial year 2012-13 with Isingapore dollar as cost of investment.

22. Contingent LiabiMty:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a 
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.



To the Board of Directors of Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements ofKavveri Telecom Products Limited ("the 
Company") and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the 
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the 
Company in accordance With accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financials. As there is no reporting on 'Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements', there is no 
necessity of including the heading 'Report on the Financial Statements' above the introductory paragraph 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Company's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
m anagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We did not audit the financial statements of the three subsidiaries of M/.s Kaweri Telecom Products Limited 
namely Kaweri technologies Inc, Canada, Eaicom India Private Limited, Kaweri Telecom Espana, Spainwhose 
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.128,73,81,147/- as at 31" March, 2013 and total revenue of 
Rs.94,79,45,687/- for the year ended on that date and these financial statements have been audited by Ananth 
Shravan & Co., Chartered Accountants based at Bangalore. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the said amounts 
included in respect of the subsidiaries is based solely on the accounts prepared and certified by them.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated 
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India;



(a) In the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2013;

(b) In the case of the consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and

(c) In the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement; of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For P.Murali & Co.,
CharteredAccountants
Firm's Registration Number: 007257S

P. Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

M.No: 023412

Place; Hyderabad 
Date: 30-05-2013,



KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2013

31.03.2013
Rs.

31.03.2012
Rs.

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(c) Money Received against warrants

Share application money pending allotment 

Minority Interest

Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Long term  liabilities
(d) Long-term provisions

Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions

2.1
2.2

2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6

2.7
2.8

2.9
2.10

TOTAL

20,12,42,600
1,87,96,76,827

25.50.000

43.10.000 

19,72,441

78,74,81,961
16,82,49,604

72,55,641
22,64,17,661'

1,33,34,40,763
91,51,20,882
35,33,27,540
10,54,83,260

5,98,65,29,180

20,12,42,600
2,85,47,31,768

43,10,000

1,41,10,342

70,72,38,522
10,73,91,000

5,80,69,950
29,32,02,482

66,65,65,198'
50,28,50,410
41,22,23,058
34,59,69,808

6,16,79,05,138

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital work-in-progress

Goodwill on consolidation

(b) Non-current Investments
(c) Long-term loans and advances
(d) Other non-current assets

Current Assets
(a) Current Investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables
(d) Cash and bank balances
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f) Other current assets

2.11
2.11

2.12
2.13

2.14
2.15
2.16
2.17
2.18

TOTAL

1,74,87,51,656
10,64,86,683
34,74,91,791

39,72,56,522

4,96,80,055
3i;78,12,199
10,89,66,800

86,07,80,157
91,80,42,351

1,17,75,179
96,22,89,935
15,71,95,852

5,98,65,29,180

1,30,86,44,754
9,86,27,971

81,53,05,747

39,72,56,522

3,40,46,614
17,24,93,178

77,96,06,265
1,74,20,90,326

6,82,32,237
74,07,20,660

1,08,80,864

6,16,79,05,138

The accompanying notes are an integral part o fth e  financial statements. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

C.Shivakumar Reddy 
Managing Director 
Place: Bangalore 

Date: 30.05.2012

R.H.Kasturi
Director

Sidharth.C.A 
Company Secretary

As per our report of even date 
for p. Murali & Co., 

Chartered Accountants
Firm s' R eg istratio n  N o .00725 7S

P.Murali Mohan Rao 
Partner 

Membership No.023412



KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended 31ST March, 2013

■ Note No. 31.03.2013 

• Rs.
31.03.2012

Rs.

Revenue from pperations(Gross) 2.21 2,40,86,93,081 4,57,05,70,923
Less: Excise Duty 1,60,01,519

2,39,26,91,562
2,77,52,312

4,54,28,18,611
Other Income 2.22 16,42,73,741 18,73,12,647

Total Revenue 2,55,69,65,304 4,73,01,31,258

Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed and Purchases Stock in Trade 2.23 1,78,49,42,975 3,17,21,31,202
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 

work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

2.24 10,35,30,091 7,58,70,054

Employee benefits expense 2.25 32,14,26,609 28,55,62,435
Finance costs 2.26 23,60,35,225 14,77,98,835
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.27 12,14,67,531 9,18,50,217

Other expenses 2.28 35,01,61,053 31,11,27,512
Total Expenses 2,91,75,63,482 4,08,43,40,255

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (36,05,98,179) 64,57,91,003
Exceptional items (64,38,988) 26,65,108
Profit before extraordinary items and tax
Extraordinary Iterns 

Profit before Tax
Tax expense:

(35,41,59,191) 64.31.25.895

64.31.25.895

(1) Current tax 1,60,94,531 14,71,62,473
Less; Mat tax credit

1,60,94,531

(52,50,000)

14,19,12,473
(2) Deferred lax 6,08,58,604 1,68,11,000

Profit for the year from continuing operations 
P ro fit/(Lo ss) from discontinuing operations 

Tax expense of discontinuing operations 
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax)

(43,11,12,325) 48,44,02,422

Less/(Add): Share of Minority Interest (1,21,37,901) 35,74,670
Profit for the period (41,89,74,424) 48,08,27,752

Earnings per share:

(1) Basic (23.46) 26.93

(2) Diluted (23.43) 26.88

The accom panying notes are an integral part o fth e  financial, statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

As per our report of even date 
for p. Murali & Co., 

Chartered Accountants
Firm s' R eg istra tio n  No. 00 7 2 5 7 S

C.Shivakumar Reddy 
Managing Director 
Place: Bang^ore 

Date: 30.05.2012

R.H.Kasturi
Director

Sidharth.C.A 
Company Secretary

P.Murali Mohan Rao 
Partner 

Membership No.023412



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2013
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31,2012

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before Taxation and extraordinary items (35,41,59,191) 64,31,25,895
Adjustments for Depreciation 12,14,67,531 9,18,50,217
Loss on sale of Tangible assets 12,81,714 69,08,195
Deferred employee Cost 1,15,96,657 39,40,923
Bad debts written off - 1,47,26,859
Interest Expenditure 23,60,35,225 14,77,98,835
Interest Income (1,18,44,536) (1,66,76,611)
Translation adjustments (1,86,25,802)
Discount (48,96,48,220) -
Income Tax relating to earlier.years 64,38,988 13,37,520
Liabilities/Provisions written back (8,44,51,320) (27,35,182)
Operating Profit before working capital changes ' (56,32,83,153) 87,16,50,850
Changes in Working Caoital:
lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 41,22,70,472 33,20,27,898
lncrease/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (24,04,86,548) 7,49,62,756
Increase/fDecrease) in Long Term Provisions (6,67,84,821) 1,98,70,157
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (5,88,95,518) 27,72,82,362
lncrease/(Decrease) in Long Term Liabilities (5,08,14,309) 5720,11,399
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables . 82,40,47,975 (75,38,05,873)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (8,11,73,891) (5,73,67,922)
(Increasej/Decrease in Short Term Loans and advances (22,15,69,275) (17,19,78,529)
(Increasej/Decrease in Long Term Loans and advances (28,37,65,585) 33,57,73,177
{Increasej/Decrease in Other Current assets (14,63,14,988) (81,55,861)
(Increasej/Decrease in Other non Current assets 6,35,26,378 (11,21,24,463)
(Increasej/Decrease in Other non Current Investments (4,96,80,055) -
Cash generated frorp Operations (46,29,23,317) 86,01,45,951
Taxes paid (Net of refunds) - (17,33,51,375)
Net cash generated from operations before extraordinary items (46,29,23,317) 68,67,94,576

Net cash generated from operating activities (46,29,23,317) 68,67,94,576

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible/Intangible Assets (58,99,71,330) (38,79,87,237)
Capital Work in Progress 46,78,13,956 (57,49,07,703)
Salfe of Asset 31,45,318 1,66,53,000
Translation adjustments 1,01,53,358
Interest received 1,18,44,536 1,66,76,611
Net Cash from Investing Activities (10,71,67,520) (91,94,11,972)■ 'X"

*
C Cash flow from Financing Activities

Dividends paid - (2,12,06,194)
Dividend distribution tax - (67,68,701)
Dividend relating to earlier year - (42,00,000)
Dividend distribution tax relating to earlier year - (6,80,817)
Interest paid (23,50,35,225) (14,77,98,835) .
lncrease/(Repayment) of Short Term borrowings 66,68,75,565 (35,80,30,762)
lncrease/(Repayment) of Long Term borrowings 8,02,43,439 19,81,73,335
Proceeds from share capital increase ■ - 6,05,52,800
Security Premium - 67,85,73,361
Share application money pending allotment 25,50,000 (11,80,71,445)
Expenses on account of share capital increase - (71,38,846)
Net cash raised in Financing activities 51,36,33,779 27,34,03,896

Net increase in cash and cash equivaients (5,64,57,057) 4,07,86,501



Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,82,32,237

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of
Cash on Hand 
Balances with Banks*

Total
♦Includes the following balances which are not available for use by the Company 

Unpaid dividend account

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kaweri Telecom Products Limited

48,48,769
69,26,410

9,06,662

3,76,692
6,78,55,545

11,52,479

As per our report of even date 
for P. Murali & Co., 

Chartered Accountants
Firms' Registration No.0072575

C.Shivakumar Reddy 
Managing Director

Place; Bangalore 
Date: 30.05.2013

R.H.Kasturi
Director

Sidharth.C.A 
Company Secretary

P. Murali Mohana Rao 
Partner 

Membership No.023412



KAWERI TELECOM PRODUCTS LIMITED
2. NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013

The previous year figures have been regrouped /  reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current year presentation. 

2.1 SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012

Authorised
2,50,00,000 (Previous Year 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares'of Rs. 10/- each 
Issued and Subscribed and fully Paid-up
2,01,24,260 (Previous Year 14,068,980) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 
fully paid up__________________________  .

25,00,00,000

20,12,42,600
20,12^42,600

25,00,00,000

20.12.42.600
20.12.42.600

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share held.
Paid-up capital includes 4,935,000 shares issued as consideration as per the Scheme of amalgamation with erstwhile Megasonic Telecoms Private 
lim tied in the year 2003-04.
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
Dividend, if approved, is payable to the shareholders in proportion to their shareholding.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company. The 
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
Reconciliation of number of Shares
Equity 5hares:

Balance as at the beginning of the previous year 
Add: Shares issued during the year 
Balance as at the end of theyear

Details of Shares held by shareholders, holding more

As at . 
31st March 2013

Number of 
Shares

2,01,24,260

Amount

20,12,42,600

As at
3 is t March 2012 

Number of 
Shares

1,40,68,980
60,55,280

Amount

14,06,89,800
6,05,52,800

2>01,24,260 20,12,42,600 , 2,01,24,260 20,12,42,600

than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company.
No. of Shres Percentage No. of shares Percentage

C Shiva Kumar Reddy 17,97,995 8.93 23,56,704 11.71
R H Kasturi 18,41,604 9.15 23,63,769 11.75
C Uma Reddy 17,50,100 8.70 17,50,100 8.70

Stock Option Plan (2008)
In the financial year 2008-09, the company instituted the 2008 Plan. The shareholders and Board of Directors approved the plan in April 2008 which 
provides for the issue of 5,00,000 equity shares to the employees. The compensation committee administers the 2008 Plan. Options were issued to 
employees at an exercise price at par value of the share.
Vesting of employee stock options granted occurs in tranches as under:________________

Period Vesting proportion Vesting proportion
At the end of one year from the date of grant 
At the end of two years from the date of grant 
At the end of three years from the date of grant

The activity in the 2008 Plan during the year ended March 31, 2013 is set out below:

20%
30%
50%

Price of exercise per share Number of shares 
outstanding arising 

out of options
Rs. 10/-

As of March 31,2013, the Company had 3,07,200 number of shares reserved for the issue.

3,07,200 3,07,200



Particulars
(a) Capital Reserve
Opening balance
Add: addition during the year
Baiance as at the end of the year

(b) Securities Premium account
Opening baiance
Add: Receipt on issue of securities
Add: Receipt on exercise of Employee Stck Options

Less: Utilisation towards QIP Expenses 
Balance as at the end of the year

(c) Employee Stock option outstanding
Opening balance
Add: New Grants during the year
Less:- Transfer to Securities premium Account
Less:- Transfer towards Lapsed options

Less:- Deferred stock compensation cost

(d) General Reserve
Opening balance
Add : Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss 
Balance as at the end of the year

(e) Foreign currency translation reserve
As per Last Balance sheet
Add: Currency Transiattion gain during the year

(f) Reserve for fait in value of Investment
Opening balance *
Add : Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss

95,91,325

1,55,03,58,582

5,82,88,050

4,93,297
5,77,94,753
4,53,33,408

9,07,44,280

(1,94,56,676)

37,18,584

95,91,325

1,55,03,58,582

1,24,61,345

9,07,44,280

(1,94,56,676)

73,25,779
22,65,546

87,17,85,221
67,80,62,500

76,49,707
1,55,74,97,428 

 71,38,846

87,59,420
5.82.88.051 

76,49,707 
11,09,713

5.82.88.051 
5,74>23,361

4,95,15,948
4,12,28,332

4,32,23,223
1,80,25,802

95,91,325

1,55,03,58,582

37,18,584 J7,18,584

8,64,689

9,07,44,280

6,18,49,025

37,18,584

(g) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Less: Discount given to Al Mehrab Trading

Discount given to M/s.Nextgen Electronics Pvt Ltd 
Dividend relating to earlier year on account of • 
increased capital
Dividend distribution tax on above 

Add: Reduction in Tax provision due to Discount given 
Add: Reduction of Dividend from40% to 15% for the year 2011’ 12 
Add: Dividend distribution tax on above
Add: Profit fortheyear ‘ _____
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Proposed Dividend on Equity shares for the year 
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend of 
equity Equity Shares
Transfer to General Reserve ________
Balance as at the end of the year

1,13,76,05,283
39,62,93,026
27,27,06,974

13,15,93,401
5,03,10,650

81,61,645
J4!8^,7^,424J[

2'3,96,'96,'555

79,64,42,352

42,00,000

6,80,817

48,08,27,752
1,27,23,89,287

8,04,97,040
1,30,58,632

4,12,28,332
23,96,96,555 1,13,76,05,283

TOTAL 1,87,96,76,827 2,85,47,31,768

2.3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Secured
from Banks
Vehicle Loan from Banks 
Others

73,41,00,865
62,45,221

4,71,35,874
78,74,81,961

70,18,68,410
48,46,798

5,23,314
70,72,38,522



K aw eri Telecom Products Ltd
a) Term Loan Account w ith  State Bank o f India is secured by firs t charge on the  entire present and fu tu re  fixed assets o f the company and equitable 

mortgage o f the  land and building at Suragajakkanahalli, Anekal Taluk where the  factory is located and fu rthe r secured by the  securities offered in 
respect o f  Cash Credit facilities as referred to  in Column No. 2.7

Terms o f Repayment: Repayable in 38 m onth ly  instalments from  the date o f the Loan (February 2010) alongwith interest o f 13.15% p.a.
b) Vehiclh loan from  the  respective banks are secured by the respective vehicles against which the  loans are granted

(i) Vehicle Loan from  Tata Capital Limited is repayable in 36 m onth ly  instalments commencing from  November 2010 w ith  an interest rate of 9.50% p.a.
(ii) Vehicle Loan from  HDFC Bank is repayable in 36 m onth ly instalments commencing from  June 2010 w '‘ h "ti 'n ti're r t ’■a*"' o f £.5%
(iii) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 36 m onth ly  instalments commencing from  June 2009 w ith  an interest rate o f 11%
(iv) Vehicle Loan from  HDFC Bank is repayable in 36 m onth ly instalments commencing from  October 2011 w ith  an interest rate of 10% ,
(v) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 60 m onth ly instalments commencing from  April 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 11.34%
(vi) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 36 m onth ly instalments commencing from  July 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 10.89%
(vi) Vehicle Loan from  Axis Bank is repayable in 36 m onth ly instalments commencing from  July 2012 w ith  an interest rate o f 10.89%

K aw eri Telecom Infrasture L{d •
(a) Term Loan from  Axis Bank is secured by pledge o f 637,000 shares o f Kaweri Telecom Products Private Limited held by promoters. Further the  loan is 

guaranteed by tw o  directors along w ith  the  corporate guarantee o f M /s Kaweri Telecom Products Ltd. Terms o f Repayment; Repayable in 84 m onthly 
instalments including a m oratorium  o f 9 months commencing from  the  date o f the  Loan ie. 12.03.2011 a longw ith  interest @12% p.a.

(b) Term Loan 1 &  2 from  ICICI Bank is secured by firs t charge by way o f hypothecation o f Company's entire stocks o f raw materials, semi finished goods and 
fin ished goods, consumable goods and spares and o the r movable assets including book debts, all type o f bills and receivables both present and fu tu re  
The loan is fu rth e r secured by exclusive charge on the  present and fu tu re  movable fixed assets o f the  company and corporate guarantee o f the  holding 
Company . Further the  bank w ill have the  exclusive charge on the  land owned by EAICOM India Private Ltd. And corporate guarantee o f Eaicom India 
Private Ltd in the  capacity o f collateral owner. The loan is personally guaranteed by tw o  o f the  company's directors and exclusive charge on property

/p ledge o f shares o f the ,ho ld ing company o f Rs. 50 M illion.
Term Loan 1 is repayable in 54 instalments from  09.02.2010 and the  rate o f interest is 12% per annum. Term Loan 2 is repayable in 60 m onth ly instalments 

commencing from  31.01.2011 and the  rate o f interest payable is 11.5% p.a

(c) Term Loan from  Dena Bank is secured by the entire  movable fixed assets ranking pari-passu firs t charge w ith  ICICI Bank Ltd and Axis Bank Ltd and fu rthe r 
secured by firs t charge on the  entire current assets o f the company both present and fu tu re  ranking pari-passu w ith  ICICI Bank Ltd and Axis Bank Ltd.
It is fu rth e r secured by pledge o f prom oters' share to  an extent o f 16% o f exposure during  the  entire  currency o f  the  Term Loan. Further pari-passu charge 
on the  escrow account need to  be maintanined where all the collections from  the  debtors are deposited.
Terms o f Repayment: Repayable in 8 years including im plem entation period o f 1 year and m oratorium  period o f 1 year. Loan w ill be repaid in 24 quarterly 
instalments o f Rs. 187.50 lakhs each after 2 years from  the  date o f disbursement. Floating rate o f interest @ 14% is payable as per the  prevailing market 
rates. The loan was disbursed in the m onth o f February 2012

2.4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Opening Balance
Liability attributable to depreciation 
Less: Asset attributable to expenses allowable when paid 

Asset attributable to carried forward loss

10,73,91,000

6,08,58,604
36,59,000

1,38,30,000

12,48,80,000

1,74,89,000

TOTAL 16,82,49,604 
In the absence of Deferred Tax provisions, in case of countries where the foreign subsidiaries are located, no deferred tax has been provided and hence 
the same has not been considered on consolidation.

10,73,91,000

2.5 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 . As at 31.3.2012

Other Non current liabilities 72,55,641 5,80,69,950

TOTAL 5,80,69,950

2.6 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Provision for Warranty 
Gratuity obligation

21,89,32,891 
. 74,84,770

28,83,13,057
48,89,425

TOTAL
22,64,17,661 

7 22,64,17,661
29.32.02.482
29.32.02.482



Secured
Operating credit facilities from Banks
Loan from Corproate
Others
Unsecured
Loan from Corproate
Others

2.8 TRADE PAYABLES

TOTAL

1,00,26,62,902
86,68,967

32,21.08,894

1,33,34,40,763

61,42,77,994
5,00,00,000

22,87,204

66,65,65,198

Particuiars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012

Acceptances 
Trades payables

TOTAL

91.51.20.882

91.51.20.882

29,22,02,509
21,06,47,901

50,28,50,410

2.9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particuiars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Current maturities of Lone term debt:
Term Loan account 
Vehicle Loan Payable 
Unpaid dividend
Statutory dues (Including Provident Fund, Withholding and other taxes payable) 
Book overdraft - Axis Bank 
Book overdraft - SBI Bank 
Other payables .
Advance received from customers and advance rental income 
Advance received from related party

TOTAL

1,32,90,726
46,66,745

3,09,40,802
3,67,72,822

16,85,673
23,52,03,049
3,05,87,500

1,80,223

35,33,27,540

14,50,17,516
45,74,215
11,52,479
97,61,505

4,04,95,321

15,69,95,810
5,42,26,212

41,22,23,058

2.1t) SHORTTERM PROVISIONS
Particulars As at 31.3.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Provision for Employee benefits 
Provision For Income Tax 
Provision for Compensated absence 
Dues to Key Managerial Personnel 
Provision for Warranty 
Other Provisions
Provision for proposed Dividend on Equity Shares
Provision for dividend distribution tax on proposed Dividend on equity shares

TOTAL

39,09,542 
4,94,91,405 
* 56,03,949 
3,80,76,361 

67,13,261 
16,88,744

10,54,83,260

93,27,126
17,74,57,586

26,72,330
3,63,31,842
1,44,49,062
1,21,76,189
8,04,97,040
1,30,58,633

34,59,69,808



2.12 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012 -
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Security Deposits • ' 2,35,18,109 2,03,76,626
Capital Advances 35,00,000
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer Note 2.40) 26,93,76,964
Statutory Payments 2,49,17,126 1,00,45,865
Others / 1,24,123

TOTAL 31,78,12,199 3,40,46,614

2.13 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Long term deposits with banks with maturity period more than 12 months 10,04,37,156 11,52,43,994
Margin Money Deposits 60,84,786 5,22,98,272
Unamortised Expenses 24,44,858 49,50,912

TOTAL 10,89,66,800 17,24,93,178

2.14 INVENTORIES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012

(a) Raw materials 34,76,27,012 36,99,83,211
(b) Work-in-progress 4,27,84,452 2,65,87,632 ‘
(c) Finished goods 11,90,27,222 . 14,50,34,492
(d) Stock-in-trade 35,13,41,470 23,80,00,930

TOTAL 86,07,80,157 77,96,06,265

2.15 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Unsecured, considered sood
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
are due for payment * 3>73,37,896

- from related Parties 3,87,07,325
'  from Other customers 40,13,27,184

Others . 47,80,07,841 1,70,47,52,430
Unsecured,, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
are due for payment
Others
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -

TOTAL 91,80,42,351 1,74,20,90,326

2.16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES .

Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Cash and Cash eauivalents
Cash on hand 48,48,769 3,76,692
Bank balances:
- in current Account 60,19,749 6,67,03,066
Unpaid dividend account ^ 9,06,662 11,52,479

TOTAL 1,17,75479 6,82,32,237

Z.17 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.3.2012
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income Tax 2,32,13,682 1,21,29,250
Balances with Customs, Central Excise,VAT etc. 12,29,06,966 • 14,37,29,656
Prepaid expenses 26,50,643 55,13,074
Loans and advances to Employees 39,35,025 5,64,066
MAT credit entitlement 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000
Short Term Deposits with Corporates 40,00,00,000
Others 79,75,'83,620 16,67,84,614

TOTAL 96,22,89,935 74,07,20,660



2.18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Income accrued on deposits 
Income accrued on Loans to others 
Other Receivables

26,56,821
1,02,74,266

14,42;64,765

11,26,290
97,54,574

TOTAL

2.19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 
(to the extent not provided for)
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Statutory claims under appeals/disputesr
(a) Income tax matters
(b) Excise Matters (Refer Note (v) below)
(c) Sales Tax matter

Guarantees by Bank 
Corporate Guarantee

15,71,95,852 1,08,80,864

80,80.428

5,14,13,876
50,35,82,590

63,22,513

67,98,570
81,49,50,191

(i) M/s. Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Ltd and M/s Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. had invoked b^nk guarantees totaling to Rs. 4,41,000 and Rs.7,55,081 
respectivJely against which the company has filed cases against such invoking of bank guarantees and is advised that the matter will be resolved 
in favour o f the company in respect o f the said amount and hence no provision is made in the books of account.

(ii) In the Matter of dispute with M/s Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL), the Honourable High Court of Karnataka at Bangalore have referred the 
matter to the arbitrator to be appointed by M/s BSNL, against invoking of Bank guarantee of a sum of Rs.22,70,000.

(iii) There are claims against one of the Company's properties located at Bangalore. which is presently owned by the Company.
(iv) Margin Money deposits with the bank amounting to Rs. 5,22,98,272 (Rs. 1,43,93,385) has been given as margin money for the guarantees issued 

by the bankers. ■
(v) Customs, Excise an Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, South Zone, Bangalore, however had stayed the aforesaid demand subject to payment o f Rs. 2 Crores 

within six weeks from 07.03.2012 and Rs 15 Lakhs within a period of six weeks from 31.01.2012

2.20 PROPOSED DIVIDEND
The final dividend proposed for the year is as follows:

On equity shares of Re.lO each
Amount of dividend proposed Dividend per Equity Share

As at 31.03.2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
In Rs. 
4.00



(a) Sale of Products
(b) Sale of services 

LessiAdvance Rental Income

2,21,64,98,991
19,21,94,090

2,40,86,93,081

20,07,02,049
3,26,34,944

4,40,25,03,818

16,80,67,105
4,57,05,70,923

2.22 OTHER INCOME
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
(a) Interest Income from Banks
(c) Bad debts recovered
(d) Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required
(e) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
(f) Miscellaneous income

TOTAL

1,18,44,536
4,75,264

8,44,51,320
■5,45,48,619

16,42,73,741

1,66,76,611

27,35,182
14,00,33,285
2,78,67,571

18,73,12,647

2.23 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012
Material Consumption
Opening Stock of Raw Materials 
Add : Purchases during the year 
Less; Closing Stock of Raw - Materials 
Raw Materials 
Packing Materials 
Opening Stock of Raw Materials 
Add : Purchases during the year 
Less: Closing Stock 
Purchases Stock in Trade 

Purchases during the year

36,99,83,211
33,48,99,322

52,032
10,81,376

35,72,55,521

11,33,409

1,42,65,54,046
1,78,49,42,975

23,67,45,236
74,83,31,043
36,99,83,211

61,50,93,068
14,31,921

2,55,56,06,213
3,17,21,31,202

2.24 CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

(lncrease)/Decrease in Stocks 
Stock at the end of the year: 

Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 
Stock in Trade

11,90,27,222
4,27,84,452

35,13,41,470 51,31,53,144

14,50,34,492 
. 2,65,87,632 
23,80,00,929

40,96,23,053

Less: Stock at the beginning of the year 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 
Stock in Trade

(lncrease)/Decrease in Stocks (A-B)

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

14,50,34,492
2,65,87,632

23,80,00,929 40,96,23,053

10,35,30,091

11,79,87,141
77,97,933

35,97,08,033 48,54,93,107

(7,58,70,054)

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 
Contribution to Provident and other funds 
Deferred Employee Compensation Cost 
Gratuity paid 
Managerial Remuneration 
Staff welfare expenses

27,39,31,877
3,45,99,800
1,15,96,657

12,98,274 32.14.26.609

32.14.26.609

22,95,03,674
27,66,951
39,40,923
8,14,046

4,28,41,276
56,95,565 28.55.62.435

28.55.62.435



2.26 FINANCE COSTS
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2012 Year ended 31st March 2012

Interest on Long term borrowings 28,40,899 2,21,36,773
Other borrowing cost 22,67,03,860 10,88,90,457
Charges towards letter of credit and guarantees 61,67,168 77,38,644
Others 39,021 90,32,961
interest on statutory dues 2,84,277

TOTAL 23,60,35,225 14,77,98,835
2.27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Depreciation on tangible assets 10,65,36,481 8,16,71,769
Amortisation on Intangible assets 1,49,31,049 1,01,78,448

TOTAL 12,14,67,531 9,18,50,217

2.28 OTHER EXPENSES (
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Consumption of stores and spare parts 4,31,398 11,36,008
Excise Duty (67,96,455) (9,69,149)
Power and Fuel 1,22,12,328 82,57,900
Warranty Charges 3;31,01,819
Job work and handling charges 70,66,120 1,15,24,648

'■ Freight Inwards 53,09,586 1,20,76,043
'Rent 6,51,93,027 5,21,35,947
Repairs and Maintenance -  Plant and Machinery 22,53;750 60,54,767
Repairs and Maintenance -  Building 2,61,051 4,72,842
Repairs and Maintenance -  Others 16,35,653 37,09,024
Insurance 18,53,145 80,81,244
Rates and Taxes 2,67,943 11,20,417
Carriage Outwards 40,98,415
Travelling and Conveyance 78,61,121 99,68,577
Directors' Sitting fees 40,000 85,000
Statutory Auditors : Audit fees 9,54,027 7,00,000

Tax Audit fees 75,000 1,00,000
Other Services 1,25,000 1,25,000
Reimbursement o f expenses 25,460

Cost Audit fees ■ 65,000 12,19,027 9,50,460

Management fee 1,29,18,750
Communication Expenses 90,959
Professional fees 81,94,408
Service Charges
Other expenses 9,98,36,964

22,91,213
Freight Outward Charges 25,36,298
Exchange fluctuation loss (Net) 6,86,91,286
Loss on Sale of assets 12,81,714 69,08,195
Research and Development Expenses 2,96,10,486
Provision for Advance in Foreigh Subsidiary 37,18,585
Research and Development Expenses 2,92,25,686
Bad debts written off 1,47,26,859
Miscellaneous expenses 2,12,96,856 10,30,0^,459
Preliminary expenses writqn off 3,16,845 1,33,536
Deferred revenue expenses written off 46,72,379 12,22,430

TOTAL 35,01,61,053 31,11,27,512

2.29 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Income tax relating to previous years 13,37,520
Prior Period adjustments 64,38,988 13,27,588

TOTAL 26,65,108

2.30 AMALGAMATION
Amalgamation with Megasonic Telecoms Private Limited; - The Company got amalgamated with erstwhile Megasonic Telecoms Private Limited in the year 
2003-04 and as per the scheme of amalgamation 4,935,000 equity shares were issued as consideration.



231 CAPITAL RESERVES
The Capital Reserve of Rs. represents the excess of net fair value of assets over the purchase consideration in terms of scheme of amalgamation
taken place during the year 2003-04, which was duly approved by the Hon'ble High Courts of Karnataka and Bombay.

2.32 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2013 Year ended 31st March 2012

Basic extra­ After extra­ Basic extra­ After extra­
ordinary items ordinary items ordinary items ordinary items

(a) Basic
Profit after tax (41,89,74,424) (41,89,74,424) 48,08,27,752 48,08>27,752
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,78,56,009 1,78,56,009 1,78,56,009 1,78,56,009
Basic EPS (23.46) (23.46) 26.93 26.93

(b) Diluted
Profit after tax (41,89,74,424) (41,89,74,424) 48,08,27,752 48,08,27,752
Adjusted net profit for the year (41,89,74,424) (41,89,74,424) 48,08,27,752 48,08,27,752
Weighted average number of shares outstanding for
diluted EPS ^ 1,78,85,450 1,78,85,450 1,78,85,450 1,78,85,450
Diluted EPS (23.43) (23:43) 26.88 23.05
Face value per share 10 10 10.00 10.00

2.33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (as Identified by the Company)

Description of the nature of transaction
Description of 
Relationship

Related Party Year ended 
31st March 2013

Year ended 
31st March 20U

Sale of goods Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 18,61,825 20,00,778

Subsidiary
Trackcom Systems 
International Inc 8,23,183 2,16,708

Key Managerial 
Personnef Shivakumar Reddy 16,372
Subsidary Rymsa De Mexico 81,36,865 - -

Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Espana 18,05,915 -

Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless Inc 30,22,536 6,735

Subsidiary
KaweriTelecom 

Infrastructure Limited 50,97,238 NIL

Purchase of goods Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Tiltek Antennae Inc 
Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure Limited 
Kaweri Telecom Espana 
Rymsa De Mexico

47,33,08,790
46,69,752
31,14,365

1,67,761

Interest received

Rendering of services

Receiving of services

Provision for Advances

Remuneration paid

Lease rentals paid

Loans taken

Trade Receivables

Subsidiary Kaweri Technologies Inc 87,14,873
Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Espana 2,88,96,939 1,21,51,485

Kaweri Telecom
Subsidiary Infrastructure Limited . 1,68,93,753

SMR Telecom Holdings
Other Related Party Private Limited - 1,24,123

Subsidiary Rymsa De Mexico 1,42,91,219 90,62,094
. Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Espana 88,70,969 66,23,041
Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless Inc 83,29,654
Subsidiary Tiltek Antenna Inc 82,45,679

New England Communication
Subsidiary Systems 47,62,878

Kavyeri Telecom
Subsidiary Infrastructure Limited 4,04,30,304 1,49,24,617
Subsidiary Kaweri Technologies Inc - 33,58,748
Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 2,74,48,200
Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless Inc. 1,37,24,100

Kaweri Telecom Products
Subsidiary UK Limited 37,18,584

Key Managerial
Personnel Shivakumar Reddy 15,25,440 15,09,360
Key Managerial

Personnel R H Kasturi 15,25,440 15,09,360
Key Managerial
Personnel L. Nicolas 29,75,844 33,72,280

Other related party Uma Reddy 1,80,000 7,20,000

Key Managerial
Personnel R H Kasturi 61,82,805 73,50,000
Key Managerial

Pers(pnnel Shivakumar Reddy 13,34,53,857 1,34,12,343
DCI Digital Communication

Subsidiary Inc 2,87,698



Subsidiary Spotwave VVirless Limited 2,26,651
Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc

Subsidiary
Trackcom Systerr^s 
International Inc

Subsidiary Rymsa De Mexico

Payable at the year end
Key Managerial 
Personnel Shivakumar Reddy 13,27,64,800 1,74,75,138
Key Managerial 
Personnel R H Kasturi 61,82,805 1,74,75,138
Other related party Uma Reddy 1,58,40,000 13,81,566

Subsidiary
Trackcom Systems 
 ̂International Inc 1,58,927

Receivable at the year end Subsidiary Kaweri Technologies Inc 5,06,07,451 2,78,46,490

Subsidiary DCI Digital Communication Inc 6,49,364
Subsidiary Kaweri Realty Inc 18,195 17,181
Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Espana 20,27,27,454 21,21,18,387
Subsidiary Spotwave Wireless Inc 1,04,54,221

Subsidiary
Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure Limited 84,40,841 61,75,98,391

Subsidiary
Kaweri Telecom Products 
UK Limited 37,19,685 37,18,584

Subsidiary Eaicaom India Private Limited 3,43,46,795 3,42,97,085
Subsidiary Tiltek Antennae Inc 9,24,25,103 1,98,24,439
Subsidiary Trackcom System Inc 8,14,717
Subsidiary Rymsa De Mexico 2,18,00,215

.J' Subsidiary Kaweri Telecom Espana 1,21,51,485

Subsidiary
Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure Limited 1,52,04,378

Subsidiary Kaweri Technologies !nc 6,51.86,481

Other Related Party
SMR Telecom Holding s Pvt 
Ltd 1,24,123

Share application money pending allotment Subsidiary
Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure Limited 12,20,00,000 ‘ 12,20,00,000

LIST OF RELATED PARTIES 
Key Management Personnel

Mr.C.Shivakumar Reddy

Direct Subsidiaries

Eaicom India Private 
Limited
Kaweri Technologies 
Inc.

Indirect Subsidiaries

DCI Digital Communications 
Inc
Spotwave Wireless 
Ltd

Other Associates/ 
Other related party

SMR Telecom Holdings 
Private Limited

Ms. C.Uma Reddy

Ms. R .H Kasturi
Kaweri Telecom 
Infrastructure Limited 
Kaweri Telecom 
Products UK Limited 
Kaweri Telecom 
Espana

Kaweri Technologies 
Americas Inc

Kaweri Realty 5 
Inc.
Trackcom Systems 
Internationa! Inc 
Til-Tek Antennae 
Inc.
Rymsa De Mexico 
Quality Communications 
Systems
New England Communication 

Systems



2.34 SEGMENT RESULTS
The company's predominant risks and returns are from the segment of "Wireless sub-systems Products" represehted by Intenna, Duplexer, RF Products and 
RF accessories, which constitute the major revenue of the company for the reporting period. Since this being a single business segment, the segment 
information as per Iccounting Standard 17, "Segment Reporting", Is not disclosed.

2.35 Expenses incurred under the following heads, on account of capital items have been initially debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss and thereafter 
It has been capitalised to the respective capital asset

Head of Expenses 2013

Salaries and Wages 
Rent
Labour Charges 
Travelling and conveyance 
Transportation charges 
Rates and Taxes 
Insurance
Interest and Bank Charges 
Miscellaneous Expenses

68,16,430

22,12,854

2.49.951
4,77,12,842

5,69,92,077

1,18,78,833
11,36,550
27,14,587

5,85,503
4,91,278

3,44,994
7,09,06,337

6,24,438
8,86,82,520

2.36 OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The company has taken office, other facilities under cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases, which are renewable on a periodic basis.

The disclosures relating to the leases undertaken are given under:
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2012
Lease rent recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss
Minimum lease payments outstanding in respect of 
these areas under:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years__________

5,78,06,915

5,94,00,216
23,76,00,864

4,62,24,688

4,45,32,377
17,20,10.440

2.37 The Company has defaulted in repayment of cash credit and term loan which were availed from Bank. The Bank has issued notice U/s. 13(2) of Securitisation and 
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 to recover an amount of ' Rs. 96.85 crores which includes outstanding interest towards 
cash credit and term loan availed by the Company.

2.38 During the year, the company had taken back the materials from the customers as the payments were not being received from them. The Company in turn made arrangements 
with the vendors to return these materials back to the vendors from whom they were sourced.

2.39 The Company during the year gave volume discounts to various customers and to have future business from these customers.

For and or\ behalf o f th e  Board o f Directors o f 
K aw eri Telecom Products Limited

fo r P. M urali &  Co., 
Chartered Accountants

Firms' Registration No.007257S

C.Shivakumar Reddy 
Managing D irector 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 30.05.2013

R.H.Kasturi
D irector

Sidharth.C.A 
Company Secretary

P. M ura li Mohana Rao 
Partner 

Membership No.023412
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l.STATEMENTON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS 

1.1 Basis'of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The consolidated financial statements (CFS) relate to Kaweri Telecom Products Limited here-inafter

referred to as the "Company") and its Subsidiaries (hereinafterreferred as the "Group')

The accounts o fthe group are prepared and (Presented under the historical cost c o n v e n tio n o n  the  

accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accountingprinciples generally accepted in India 

("GAAP") and comply with the mandatory accounting standards notified bythe Central Government of 

India under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and with the relevant provisions o fthe  

Companies Act, 1956.

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified 

Accounting Standards by Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions ofthe 

Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared underthe historical cost convention 

on an accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The accounting 

policies have been consistently applied bythe Company and are consistent with those used in the previous 

year and in case of any such variation in the accounting policy as compared to the previous year; such 

variations are disclosed separately as a part of notes to accounts.

1.2 Principles of Consolidation:

i) The consolidated financial statements of Kaweri Telecom Products Ltd together with audited financial- 

statements of its subsidiaries,has been consolidated forthe purpose of consolidation.

ii) The financial statements o fthe  parent company and its subsidiaries have been combined to the extent 

possible on a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The 

results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are included in consolidated Statement of 

Profit and Loss from the effective date of acquisition or upto the effective date of disposal as appropriate. 

Iii) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like 

transactions and other events in sinjilar circumstances and are prepared to the extent possible, in the 

same manner as the parent company's financial statements

iv) Minority interest in the net income and net asset of the consolidated financial statements are 

computed and shown separately. Losses applicable to minority in excess of minority interest in the 

subsidiaries equity are allowed against the interest of the group.

v) Unamortised carrying value of goodwill is tested for impairment as at each balance sheet date, 
vi) Subsidiaries-The subsidiary companies considered in CFS are:



Nam e o f th e  com pany C ou n try  o f 
in co rp o ra tio n

Percentage o f  ho ld ing  
as on M arch , 2012

A ccoun ting  Period

D irec t subsid ia ries
Eaicom India  P rivate  
L im ited

India 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

K a w e ri Telecom  
In fra s tru c tu re  L im ited

India 51% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

K a w e ri Telecom  
P roducts UK L im ited

England 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

K a w e ri Techno log ies 
Inc

'Canada 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to . 31'* 
M arch  2013

K a w e ri Te lecom  Espana Spain
i

100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

Subsidiaries' of wholiy owned subsidiary, Kaweri Technologies Inc
Til -  Tek A n tennae  Inc Canada 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 

M arch  2013
Trackcom  Systems 
In te rn a tio n a l Inc

Canada 67% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  3 l '*  
M arch  2013

DCI D ig ita l 
C om m un ica tions  Inc

Canada 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

S potw ave  W ire less Ltd Canada 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

Kaveri Realty 5 Inc Canada 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

Subsidiaries of wholly owned subsidiary, Kaweri Telecom Espana
Rymsa De M exico , SA 
D'E C.V

M exico 100% 1'* A p ril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch  2013

1.3 Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generaliy accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of 
the operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best 
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

1.4 Fixed Assets:

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition (Net of Cenvat and VAT) plus subsequent improvements 
thereto including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and 
installation including finance charges which are directly attributable to the Fixed assets less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Capital Work in Progress comprises o fthe cost of fixed assets that are not put to use as at the Balance 
Sheet date and advance paid towards acquisition of Fixed Assets and relevant financial charges 
incurred thereon.

Technical knowhow acquired to beused to upgrade and develop new products and used for 
enhancement of features & functionalities of the products are capitalisedunder Fixed asset as 
Technical Knowhow.



Software which are not integrai part o fthe  hardware are classified aslntangibles and is stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization. Software's are being amortized over the estimated useful life which 
is estimated as3 Years.

Temporary structures installed at the leased out premises is being written off over the tenure of the 
lease agreement.

The excess of cost of the Company of its investments in the subsidiary Company over its share of the 
equity of the subsidiary Company, at the dates on which the investment in the subsidiary Company 
was made, is recognized as "Goodwill" being an asset in the consolidated financial statement.

1.5 Depreciation:

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided using Straight-line method at the rates prescribed under 
Schedule XIV of the companies Act, 1956 on proportionate basis.

Cost of Technical knowhow is being written off over a period of lOyears.

Cost of assets wherever is less than Rs. 5000 is written off fully in the year of purchase.

Depreciation in respect of overseas subsidiaries is provided over the estimated useful life by using the 
Witten Down Vaiue (WDV) method.

However, the said rates of depreciation, respect of overseas subsidiaries are higher than the rates 
prescribed vide Scheduie XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

1.6 Minority Interest

Minority interest is the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consfst o fthe amount of equity attributable 
to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the 
subsidiary companies and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to dates of 
investments as stated above. The excess of loss over the minority interest in the equity is adjusted against 
General Reserve of the Company.

1.7 Impairment of Assets:

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling 
price and value in use. In assessing value in'use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

1.8 Leases:

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially ail the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating iease payments are recognized as an expense in 
the  S ta tem en t o f P ro fit and Loss on a s tra ig h t- lin e  basis over the  lease te rm .

Subsidiary company takes pn lease various properties on lease to provide "In building Solutions" which are

' ~9i  ̂  ̂  ̂ ^



cancellable and is in turn sub le tto  various cell phone operators while providing "In building Solutions".

1.9 InventoryValuation:

Raw Materials, Stores and spares and Traded Goods are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. 
Cost is determined based on first in first out basis and are net of provisions.

Work in Progress and Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
Direct Materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

1.10 Investments:

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Long term 
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a 
diminution other than temporary in the value of investments.

1.11 Research and Development:

Expenditure on Research and Development other than capital items is charged to revenue. Cost incurred 
on any generation of intangible/tangible asset out of the Research and development activity is 
amortized/written o ff overthe estimated life of the asset.

1.12 Revenue Recognition:

Sales are recognized when the significant risks attached to the goods are passed on to the buyer and 
are recorded net of duties, trade discounts, and rebates.

Sales Returns are recognized as and when ascertained and are reduced from the sales turnover o fthe 
year.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.

Export benefits are accounted on accrual basis.

Service income is recognised as and when "On A ir" status has been achieved as c e rt if ie d  by
the customer; based on the contractual terms and conditions of each site of the "In building wireless 
solutions" upto the end of theyear.

Future rentals invoiced as perthe contractual terms are excluded from the services in c o m e  as
"Advance Income received".

1.13 Warranty Expenses: Estimated amount of warranty expenses evaluated on a technical basis on sale o f 
Radio Products wherever it is obligated to cover under warranty,is provided in the year of sale and the



expired portion ofthe Warranty ex'penses relating to the period/year are transferred to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Unexpired portion of the Warranty expenses is carried over as a liability in the books of 
account and is written back over the number of years of the coverage of warranty on the basis of 
estimated warranty expenses for such products.

1.14 Exchange Fluctuation:

a. Foreign currency transactions are accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction.

b. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transaction and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the yearend 
rates are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c. In case the monetary assets and liabilities are covered by forward contract, the premium or 
discount arising at the inception of such a forward contract is amortized as expense or income 
overthe life o fthe contract.

d. For the purpose of consolidation of accounts of foreign subsidiaries, average rate of currencies 
have been taken for revenue items and year-end rates have been applied for Balance sheet items 
as per Accounting Standard 11 (AS 11) -  "The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates", 
notified by the Central Government of India under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 
2006.

e. The net exchange difference for the translation items in the financial statement of foreign 
subsidiaries is taken to Exchange Fluctuation Reserve.

1.15 Employee Benefits:

In respect of Parent Company including Indian Subsidiaries
Provident Fund: Eligible employees receive benefits from a Provident Fund, which is a defined 
contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon, are paid at retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination of employment. Both the employee and the Company make 
monthly contributions to the Government administered Provident Fund. The Company has no 
obligation beyond its contribution.

Gratuity: Adefined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan") is provided to all employees. In 
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum 
amount to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, 
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. 
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method, as of the balance sheet date.

Expenses on ex-gratia payment to employees, a defined contribution plan, are accounted as and 
when accepted by the management.

Provision in respect of Leave encashment is made, based on actuarial valuation.

In respect of foreign subsidiaries:

.  ̂  ̂ ^ _ _  ^



Foreign subsidiaries make contribution to various social security plans and insurance schemes as 
per local requirements and generally accepted practices in their respective country of 
incorporation. Such contributions are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which 
liabilityto pay arises.

1.16 Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized until the time all substantial 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. A qualifying 
asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs nBt eligible for capitalization are charged to revenue.

1.17 Taxes:

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current Income Tax is measured based on the tax 
liabilitycomputed after considering tax allowances and exemptions.

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to  the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, 
on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that 
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred Tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

1.18 Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported usingthe indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted forthe  effects of 
transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and items income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. Cash and Cash 

’ Equivalents include Cash on hand and balance with banks in current and deposit accounts, with necessary 
disclosure of cash and cash equivalent balances thatare not available for use by the company.

1.19 Stock Option Plan (2008):

The Company instituted the Kaweri ESOS 2008 Plan for all eligible employees in pursuance o fthe  special 
resolution approved by the shareholders by Postal ballot on 23* April 2008. The Kaweri ESOS 2008 Plan 
covers ail employees o fthe  company and its subsidiaries and Directors (excluding Promoter Directors) of 
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, "eligible employees"). Under the Scheme, the 
Compensation Committee of the Board ('the Committee') shall administer the Scheme and grant stock 
options to eligible directors and employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries. The Committee shall 
determine the employees eligible for receiving the options, the number of options to be granted, the 
exercise price, the vesting period and exercise period. Vesting of employee stock options granted occurs in 
tranches as under:

Period Vesting proportion
A ttheendofoneyearfrom thedateofgrant 20%
At the end o ftw o  years from the date of grant 30%
Attheendofthreeyearsfrom thedateofgrant 50%



The exercise price forthe purpose of exercise ofoptionsw ill be at Rs.10/-per share i.e. at par.

The employee stock options granted shall be capable of being exercised within a period of 5 years from the 
date o f vesting options or such lesser period as may be decided by the Compensation Committee from 
time to time.

Under the Scheme3,07,200 stock options out of the total of 5,00,000 stock options reserved for grant of 
options having an exercise price equal to the par value o fthe underlyirig equity shares on the date of grant 
(i.e. RsTi O per option) are outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

As the number of shares that an individual employee is entitled to receive and the price of the options are 
known at the grant date, the scheme is considered as a fixed grant.

In the case of termination of employment, ail non-vested options would stand cancelled. Options that 
have been vested but have not been exercised can be exercised within the time prescribed under each 
option agreement by the Committee or if no time lim it is prescribed, within 30 days of the date of 
employmenttermination,failingwhichthey would stand cancelled.
The Company follows intrinsic method of accounting based on which the compensation cost is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
During the current year, the company under the Kaweri 2008 Plan has granted 76,800options to eligible 
employees.

1.20 Earnings per share:

Basic earnings,per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number ofshares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss forthe  year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 
forthe effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.21 Contingent Liability:
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a 
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.



. STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS 

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

Theconsolidated financial statements (CFS) relate to Kaweri Telecom Products Limited here-inafter
referred to as the "Company") and its Subsidiaries (hereinafterreferred as the "Group')
The accounts o fthe group are prepared and presented underthe historical cost c o n v e n tio n o n  the  
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accountingprinciples generally accepted in India 
("GAAP") and contiply with the mandatory accounting standards notified by the Central Government of 
India under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and with the relevant provisions of the 

CompaniesAct, 1956.

The financial statements have been prepared to comply jn all material respects with the notified 
Accounting Standards by Corhpanies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions ofthe 
Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
on an accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The accounting 
policies have been consistently applied bythe Company and are consistent with those used in the previous 
year and in case of any such variation in the accounting policy as compared to the previous year; such 
variations are disclosed separately as a part of notes to accounts.

1.2 Principles of Consolidation:

i) The consolidated financial statements of Kaweri Telecom Products Ltd together with audited 
financial statements of its subsidiarjes,has been consolidated for the purpose o f  consolidation.

ii) The financial statements o fthe  parent company and its subsidiaries have been combined to 
the extent possible on a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are included in 
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the effective date of acquisition or upto the effective 
date of disposal as appropriate.

iii) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies 
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are prepared to the extent possible, 
in the same manner as the parent company's financial statements.

iv) M inority interest in the net income and net asset of the consolidated financial statements are 
computed and shown separately. Losses applicable to minority in excess of minority interest in the 
subsidiaries equity are allowed against the interest of the group.

v) Unamortised carrying value of goodwill is tested for impairment as, at each balance sheet
date.

vi) Subsidiaries -  The subsidiary companies considered in CFS are:



Name o f the 
com pany

C ountry o f 
inco rpora tion

Percentage o f 
holding as on 31'* 

March, 2012

Accounting Period

D irect subsidiaries

Eaicom India Private 
Lim ited

India 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
M arch 2013

Kaw eri Telecom 
In fras truc tu re  Lim ited

India 51% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
M arch 2013

K aw eri Telecom 

Products U K Lim ited

England 100% 1'* A pril 2012 to  31'* 
M arch 2013

K aw eri Technologies 

Inc
Canada 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 

M arch 2013'

Kaw eri Telecom 
Espana

Spain 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
March 2013

■ '

Subsidiaries o f wholly owned subsidiary, K aw eri Technologies Inc

Til -  Tek Antennae Inc Canada 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
March 2013

Trackcom Systems 
In te rna tiona l Inc

Canada 67% 1'* A pril 2012 to  31'* 
March 2013

DC! Digital 

C om m unications Inc
Canada 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 

March 2013

Spotwave W ireless 
Ltd

Canada 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
M arch 2013

Kaveri Realty 5 Inc\ Canada 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
M arch 2013

Subsidiaries o f wholly owned subsidiary, K aw eri Telecom Espana

Rymsa De Mexico, SA 
DEC.V

M exico 100% 1'* April 2012 to  31'* 
M arch 2013



1.3 Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of 
the operations duringthe reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best 
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

1.4 FixedAssets:
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition (Net of Cenvat and VAT) plus subsequent improvements 

' thereto including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental .expenses related to acquisition and
installation including finance charges which are directly attributable to the Fixed assets less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Capital Work in Progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not put tause as a tthe Balance 
Sheet date and advance paid towards acquisition of Fixed Assets and relevant financial charges 
incurred thereon.

Technical knowhow acquired to beused to upgrade and develop new products and used for 
enhancement of features & functionalities of the products are capitalisedunder Fixed asset as 
Technical Knowhow.

Software which are not integrai part of the hardware are classified aslntangibles and is stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization. Software's are being amortized overthe estimated useful life which 
is estimated as3 Years.

Temporary structures installed at the leased out premises is being written off over the tenure of the 
lease agreement.

The excess of cost of the Company of its investments in the subsidiary Company over its share of the 
equity of the subsidiary Company, at the dates on which the investment in the subsidiary Company 
was made, is recognized as "Goodwill" being an asset in the consolidated financiaistatemeht.

1.5 Depreciation:
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided using Straight-line method at the rates prescribed under 
Schedule XIV ofthe companies Act, 1956 on proportionate basis.

Cost of Technical knowhow is being written off over a period of 10 years.

Cost of assets wherever is less than Rs. 5000 is written off fully in the year of purchase.

Depreciation in respect of overseas Subsidiaries is provided over the estimated useful life by using the 
Witten Down Value (WDV) method.

However, the said rates of depreciation, respect of overseas subsidiaries are higher than the rates 
prescribed vide Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.



1.6 Minority Interest
Minority interest is the het assets of consolidated subsidiaries consist o fthe  amount of equity 
attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company 
in the subsidiary companies and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to dates of 
investments as stated above. The excess of loss over the minority interest in the equity is adjusted 
against General Reserve of the Company.

1.7 Impairment of Assets:
The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater o fthe  asset's net selling 
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

1.8 Leases:
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
leased term, are classified as op'erating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in 
the  S ta tem en t o f P ro fit and Loss on a s tra ig h t- lin e  basis over th e  lease te rm .

Subsidiary company takes on lease various properties on lease to provide "In building Solutions" which are 
cancellable and is in turn sub let to various cell phone operators while providing "In building Solutions".

1.9 InventoryValuation:
Raw Materials, Stores and spares and Traded Goods are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. 
Cost is determined based on first in first out basis and are net of provisions.

Work in Progress and Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
Direct Materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

1.10 Investments:
Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Long term 
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a 
diminution other than temporary in the value of investments.

1.11 Research and Development:
Expenditure on Research and Development other than capital items is charged to revenue. Cost incurred 
on any generation of intangible/tangible asset out of the Research and development activity is 
amortized/written offoverthe estimated life o fthe asset.

1.12 Revenue Recognition:
Sales are recognized when the significant risks attached to the goods are passed on to the buyer and 
are recorded net o f duties, trade discounts, and rebates.



Sales Returns are recognized as and when ascertained and are reduced from the sales turnover ofthe
year.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

Export benefits are accounted on accrual basis.

Service Income is recognised as and when "On A ir" status has been achieved as c e rtif ie d  by
the customer; based on the contractual terms and conditions of each site o fthe  "In building wireless
solutions" upto the end of the year.

Future rentals invoiced as perthe contractual terms are excluded from the services in c o m e  as
"Advance Income received".

1.13 Warranty Expenses: Estimated amount of warranty expenses evaluated on a technical basis on sale of 
Radio Products wherever it is obligated to cover under warranty,is provided in the year of sale and the 
expired portion o fthe  Warranty expenses relating to the period/year are transferred to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Unexpired portion of the Warranty expenses is carried over as a liability in the books of 
account and is written back over the number of years of the coverage of warranty on the basis of 
estimated warranty expenses for such products.

1.14 Exchange Fluctuation: ^

a. Foreign currency transactions are'accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction.

b. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transaction and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the yearend 
rates are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c. In case the monetary assets and liabilities are covered by forward contract, the premium or 
discount arising at the inception of such a forward contract is amortized as expense or income 
overthe life o fthe contract. ’

d. For the purpose o f consolidation of accounts of foreign subsidiaries, average rate of currencies 
have been taken for revenue items and year-end rates have been applied for Balance sheet items 
as per Accounting Standard 11 (AS 11) -  "The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates", 
notified by the Central Government of India under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 
2006.

e. The net exchange difference for the translation items in the financial statement of foreign 
subsidiaries is taken to Exchange Fluctuation Reserve.



1.15 Employee Benefits:

In respect of Parent Company including Indian Subsidiaries .
Provident Fund: Eligible employees receive benefits from a Provident Fund, which is a defined 
contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon, are paid at retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination of employment. Both the employee and the Company make 
monthly contributions to the Government administered Provident Fund. The Company has no 
obligation beyond its contribution.

Gratuity: Adefined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan") is provided to all employees. In 
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum 
amount to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, 
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employmen^; 
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method, as of the balance sheet date.

Expenses on ex-gratia payment to employees, a defined contribution plan, are accounted as and 
when accepted by the management.

. Provision in respect of Leave encashment is made, based on actuarial valuation.

In respect of foreign subsidiaries;
Foreign subsidiaries make contribution to various social security plans and insurance schemes as 
per local requirements and generally accepted practices in their respective country of 
incorporation. Such contributions are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which 
liabiiityto pay arises. . •

1.16 Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized until the time all substantial 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. A qualifying 
asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs not eligible for capitalization are charged to revenue.

1.17 Taxes:
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income Tax is measured based on the tax 
liability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions.

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, 
on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that 
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred Tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

1.18 Cash FlowStatement:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and items income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. Cash and Cash 
Equivalents include Cash on hand and balance with banks in current and deposit accounts, w ith necessary 
disclosure of cash and cash equivalent balances that are not available for use by the company.



1.19 Stock Option Plan (2008): The Company instituted the Kaweri ESOS 2008 Pian for aii eiigibie employees in 
pursuance o fthe  special resolution approved bythe shareholders by Postal ballot on 23* April 2008. The 
Kaweri ESOS 2008 Plan covers all employees of the company and its subsidiaries and Directors (excluding 
Promoter Directors) o fth e  Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, "eligible employees"). Underthe 
Scheme, the Compensation Committee of the Board ('the Committee') shall administer the Scheme and 
grant stock options to eligible directors and employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries. The 
Committee shall determine the employees eligible for receiving the options, the number of options to be 
granted, the exercise price, the vesting period and exercise period. Vesting of employee stock options 
granted occurs in tranches asunder:

Period Vesting proportion
Atthe end ofoneyearfrom the date of grant 20%
At the end o ftw o  years from the date of grant 30%
Attheendofthreeyearsfrom thedateofgrant 50%

The exercise price for the purpose of exercise of options will be at Rs.10/- per share i.e. at par.

The employee stock options granted shall be capable of being exercised within a period of 5 years from the 
date of vesting options or such lesser period as may be decided.by the Compensation Committee from 
tim etotim e.

Underthe Scheme3,07,200 stock options out o fthe  total of 5,00,000 stock options reserved for grant of 
options having an exercise price equal to the par value o fthe  underlying equity shares on the date of grant 
(i.e. Rs. 10 per option) are outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

As the number of shares that an individual employee is entitled to receive and the price o f the options are 
known at the grant'date, the scheme is considered as a fixed grant.

In the case of termination of employment, all non-vested options would stand cancelled. Options that 
have been vested but have not been exercised can be exercised within the time prescribed under each 
option agreement by the Committee or if no time lim it is prescribed, within 30 days of the date of 
employmenttermination,failingwhichtheywould stand cancelled.
The Company follows intrinsic method of accounting based on which the compensation cost is recogriized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
During the current year, the company under the Kaweri 2008 Plan has granted 76,800optjons to eligible 
employees.

1.20 Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders bythe weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 
for the effects of ail dilutive potential equity shares.

1.21 Contingent Liability:
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a 
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.



statem ent pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956

PARTICULARS

KAVERI
TELECO
M
INFRAST
RUCTUR
ELTD

KAWER
I
TECHN
OLOGIE
SINC

TIL
TEK
ANTE
NNA
INC

DCI
DIGIT
AL
COM
MUNI
CATIO
NS
INC

SPOT
WAV
E
WIRE
LESS
LTD.,

KAVE
RI
REAL
TY5
INC

TRAC
KCOM
SYST
EMS
INTER
NATIO
NAL
INC.

EAIC
OM
INDI
A
PRIV
ATE
LIMI
TED

K aw e
ri
Telec
om
Produ
cts
UK
Limit
ed

Rjrms
a

FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
SUBSIDIARY ENDED ON

3 1 ,0 3 .2 0
12

3 1 ,0 3 .2 0
12

31 .03
.2012

31 ,03 .
2012

3 1 .03
.2012

31 .03 .
2012

31 .03 .
2012

31 .0
3 .20
12

31.03.
2012

31 .03 .
2012

HOLDING COMPANY'S 
INTEREST IN THE 
SUBSIDIARY AS AT

9 0 9 6 0 0 0
EQUITY
SHARES

2 30700
SHARES
O P.

120
EQUI
TY
SHAR
ES
OF

1000
EQUIT
Y
SHAR 
ES OF

120
EQUI
TY
SHAR
ES
OF

120
EQUI
TY
SHAR 
ES OF

67
EQUIT
Y
SHAR
E S O P

2128
50
EQUI
TY
SHA
RES

1
EQUI
TY
SHAR 
E OF

3 1 .0 3 ,2 0 1 2

OF
RS.IO/-
EACH

CAD
10/-
EACH

CAD

1/-
EACH

CAD
1/-
EACH

USD

V -
EAC
H

CAD

1/-
EACH

USD

1/-
EACH

OF
RS.1
0/-
EAC
H

£ 1 /-

EXTENT OF HOLDING 51% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 6 7 % '
100
% 100% 100%

NET AGREGATE
AMOUNT OF
SUBSIDIARY 
COMPANY'S PROFIT 
/(LOSSES) NOT DEALT 
WITH THE HOLDING 
COMPANY'S ACCOUNTS:

FOR THE AFORESAID 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 
3 1 ,0 3 .2 0 1 2

4209938 .
00

7 1 0 7 0 4 8 1273
2289

4696
127

1854
9419

(5911
078)

(2072
78621

NIL 11082
04

FOR THE PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 
3 1 .03 .2011

2 5 0 2 7 2 5
6

(187312 
88] _

1565
87 0 5

80592
90

2701
2919

(7694 
02]__

39492
2

(984
2718

11076 NIL
CHANGE OF INTEREST 
OF THE COMPANY IN 
THE SUBSIDIARY
BETWEEN THE END OF 
FINANCIAL YEAR OFTHE 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
AND THAT OF HOLDING 
COMPANY NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NOTE: As the financial year of the subsidiaiy company coincides with t le  financial year of the Holding '



www.kaveritelecoms.com

k a v V e r i
I 'P a s N tn n . t oTassion to Innovate...

KAV>|(nERI ■ ^ s s i
8 R O T W / W E

MoorwMaHoovarag*

T R A C K C O IV / I
«y#tem» int«metk>nai

^  RYMSA
K A V ^ ra

H k ju u u rrr p m ^ c s

Plot No. 31 to 36,1st Main, 2nd Stage, Arakere MICO Layout, Banneraghatta Road,
Bangalore - 560 076.

Tel : 91-80-41215999 / 60 / 61 Fax: 91-80-41215966 
email: companysecretary@kaveritelecoms.com

http://www.kaveritelecoms.com
mailto:companysecretary@kaveritelecoms.com

